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About Company

Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited (is a renowned multi-brand
consumer durables and electronic and electrical appliances retailer specialising in a
wide range of products. These include mobile devices, laptops, home and kitchen
appliances, home entertainment systems, cameras, and other electronics items.
The Company operates a network of multi-brand outlets (MBOs) under the brand
name Bhatia Communication, "Bhatia Mobile - The One Stop Shop" and manages
exclusive brand outlets (EBOs) for various brands. 

One of the leading Companies in West India  

Diversified Product Offering 

Largest Consumer durables and electronics retailer in India

The Company also provide credit/EMI facilities to its customers for buying products
for which company has tied up with major leading credit houses like Bajaj Finserv,
Capital First, Home credit, HDFC Bank, Zest money, State Bank of India and other
Banking Channels.
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 Message from Chairperson

Dear "Members"
 

I am honoured to present to you
our Annual Report for the year
2022-23, which encapsulates the
significant strides we have taken
as a Company. The previous year
has been truly significant for us, 
 This major milestone signifies a
crucial advancement in our
pursuit of continuous growth and
expansion. Beyond bolstering our
financial stability, this remarkable
accomplishment has also instilled
in us a deep sense of motivation to
uphold our promise of delivering
exceptional value and trust to our
esteemed stakeholders. With the
unwavering backing of our
investors and partners, 

I am delighted to report that the
future for the electronics
consumer durable business in
India looks very promising. As the
world’s secondlargest smartphone
market, India has a rapidly
expanding consumer electronics
industry. The growth of this
industry can be attributed to
several factors including
increasing purchasing power of the
middle class and growing
penetration of the internet and
smartphones. Initiatives such as
‘Make in India’ and ‘Digital India’
by the Indian Government have
also contributed significantly to
this industry’s growth. The
provision of incentives to
manufacturers to set up
production units in India has also
led to job creation and a reduction
in the cost of electronic goods.
Additionally, the Covid-19 led to an
accelerated adoption of digital
technologies, increasing the
demand for electronic devices like
laptops, smartphones, and tablets.
Overall, The Company is well-
positioned to leverage these
favourable conditions and continue
delivering innovative and quality
products to customers.

In conclusion, I would like to
emphasise that our
achievements are a direct result
of customer demand, and we
take great pride in delivering
exceptional customer service
and an enjoyable shopping
experience across our stores.
This is facilitated by our focus
on sustainable societal
development, robust promoter
background and a highly
experienced senior management
team, whose visionary
leadership has played a pivotal
role in cultivating a corporate
culture centered around
customer satisfaction. Our
skilled management team and
well-trained staff serve as the
bedrock for sustaining and
augmenting our long-term
competitiveness.Our growth has been significantly

driven by the establishment of
new stores in both existing and
untapped markets, garnering
positive response from various
market segments and specialised
retailers. This success has
prompted us to prioritise
sustainable growth strategies by
capitalising on opportunities
across diverse product categories, 

I also want to express sincere
gratitude to our valued business
partners, suppliers, channel
partners, and other associates
for their indispensable
contributions to our growth and
success. We highly appreciate
these partnerships and remain
dedicated to fostering
collaborative efforts that lead to
mutual prosperity and
accomplishment. With Best Wishes, 

Mr. Sanjeev  Harbanslal  Bhatia

Chairman &Managing Director

Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited
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Board of Directors

SANJEEV HARBANSLAL BHATIA
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN:02063671 

NIKHIL HARBANSLAL BHATIA
WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR

DIN: 02063706

KAMLESHKUMARI  HARBANSLAL BHATIA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DIN:02066517

RASHMI KAPIL ARORA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

DIN:07584412
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ARPIT ARUNKUMAR JAIN

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

DIN:08044841

RACHIT NARESH NARANG
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

DIN:08044845
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER             
Mr. Ravindra Arunrao Sojal

 
 

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMITED

9 Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J. R. Boricha
Marg, Near Lodha Excelus,
Lower Parel (E), Mumbai-400011, Maharashtra.
Email Id: support@purvashare.com, Website:
www.purvashare.com
Ph. No.:+91-022-23016761/2518, Tele Fax: +91-
022-23012517

STATUTORY AUDITORS

R P R & Co., Chartered Accountants

9001, World trade Center, Near Udhna
Darwaja, Ring Road, Surat-395002. Ph.
No. 0261-3591630

BANKER TO THE COMPANY

HDFC BANK LIMITED

RAJKOT NAGRIK SAHAKARI BANK LIMITED

REGISTERED OFFICE

132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre,
Ring Road, Surat– 395002
Ph. No.: 0261-2349892
Email: info@bhatiamobile.com
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336
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BOARD'S COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain, Chairman

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia, Member

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang, Member

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora, Member
 

NOMINATION AND REMUNRATION
COMMITTEE

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain, Chairman

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang, Member

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora, Member
 

STAKEHOLDER'S RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora, Chairman

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain, Member

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia, Member
 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia, Chairman

Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia, Member

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang, Member
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MISSION
To achieve the milestone of happy customers with every purchase.

To have branch in every corner of India, with assured quality, best price and best
after sales support and user friendly experience. 

Vision And Mission

To be the leader by making available the latest & widest world-renowned
electronics range, at unmatched prices, with enhanced customer experience and
the convenience of Shopping

Inclusion of
latest Product

& Services  

Diversified BrandExclusive  brand tie-upsStrategic Expansion 

VISION

Annual Report 2022-23
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DELIVERING VALUE AND ACHIEVING 
SUCCESS : AWARDS

Awarded for Highest Premium Growth in
south Gujarat by SAMSANG

Awarded for Outstanding Performance by
OPPO

Certificate of Crown club of VIVO

Flagship Champion Award by SAMSUNG

Winner of Road of Glory Contest by
SAMSUNG

2022

Certificate of Appreciation from Tecno 
 Expect More

Certificate of Appreciation from HTC

Certificate of Membership of Vivo crown
club

2021
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34474 LACS

848 LACS 150+

163

2022-23
STATISTICS

TOTAL REVENUE

PROFIT AFTER TAX TEAM MEMBERS

RETAIL STORE
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
Regd. Off: 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, E mail: info@bhatiamobile.com,  Ph: 0261-2349892 

 
NOTICE OF 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

(PURSUANT TO SECTION 101 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013) 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Bhatia Communications 
& Retail(India) Limited (“Company”) will be held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023 at Shop No. 203, 
Ground Floor, Bhatia Complex, Nr. Sosyo Circle Bamroli Road, Surat, 394210 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the 
following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023 together with the report of the Board of Directors and report of the Statutory Auditor thereon, and 
in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023 together with the report of the Board of Directors and report of the Statutory Auditor thereon, as 
circulated to the shareholders, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 

2. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia (DIN: 02063706), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, 
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia (DIN: 02063706), who retires by rotation at this meeting, 
be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.” 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                                             

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) 

Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No. ACS-67837 
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NOTES: 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “meeting”) is entitled to 

appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a 
member of the company. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at 
the company’s registered office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting (on 
or before 15th Annual General Meeting). A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not 
exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of 
the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not 
act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed. 

 
2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of Board resolution authorizing their representative 
to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 
3. Karta in case of HUF, partners/proprietors in case of firm attending and voting should affix the 

respective stamp of HUF or firm on the attendance sheet, Ballot paper or Proxy form. 
 

4. Members/Proxy holders/ Authorized representatives are requested to bring their copy of Annual 
Report and Attendance slip sent herewith, duly filled-in for attending the Annual General Meeting. 

 
5. Members are requested to quote Folio number/ Client ID No. in all their correspondences. 

 
6. Relevant documents referred to in the above Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of 

the Company during the business hours on any working day (except Sunday and holidays) between 
10.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 
7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM. 
 

8. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 14th 
September, 2023 to 20th September, 2023 (both days inclusive). 

 
9. The Shareholders are requested to direct change of address notifications and updates details to their 

respective Depository Participant(s). 
 

10. Equity shares of the Company are under compulsory demat trading by all Investors. 
 

11. The Annual Report 2022-23, the Notice of the 15th AGM and instructions for e-voting along with the 
Attendance Slip and Proxy form, are being sent by electronic mode to all the members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s), unless a member has requested 
for a physical copy of documents. 
 

12. Members may also note that the Notice of the 15th AGM and the Annual Report 2022-23 will be 
available on Company’s website i.e. https://bhatiamobile.com/2022-15th-agm, on website of BSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. For 
members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the documents are being 
sent by the permitted mode. 

 
13. Members seeking any information/document as referred in the notice are requested to write to the 

Company on or before 20thSeptember, 2023 through email at csbhatia@bhatiamobile.com. The same 
will be addressed by the Company suitably. 

 
14. Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register the same with 

their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with the Company/RTA in case 
the shares are held by them in physical form. 
 

15. Members who have not registered their email addresses so far, are requested to register their email 
address for receiving all communication from the company electronically and quicker response to their 
queries to RTA or Company. 

 
16. Members are requested to contact our Registrar and Transfer Agent for any query related to shares 

and other inquiry at following address: -M/s. Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited Office No. 9 
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Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate ,J.R. Boricha Marg, Near Lodha Excelus, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai-400011, 
Maharashtra Tel.: +91-022-23016761/2518, Fax: +91-022-23012517,E-mail: support@purvashare.com, 
Website: www.purvashare.com. Please Quote Folio No. / DP ID & CL ID for any communication for 
your shareholding 

 
17. The shareholder needs to furnish the printed Attendance slip along with a valid identity proof such as 

the PAN Card, Passport, Aadhar Card or driving license to enter the AGM hall. 
 

18. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect of the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at 
the AGM, is furnished as annexure to the Notice. The directors have furnished consent/declaration for 
their appointment/re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there 
under. 

 
19. The voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share 

capital of the Company as on 13th September, 2023. 
 

20. The route map of the venue of Annual General Meeting is appended to this report. The prominent 
land mark near the venue is Rajkot Nagrik Sahkari Bank Limited, Ring Road, Surat  
 

21. Information and other instructions relating to e-voting are as under: 
 

I. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to 
the members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility 
arranged by NSDL.  
 

II. The facility available for voting through polling paper will also be made available at the AGM and 
members attending the AGM, who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able 
to exercise the right at the AGM through polling paper.  

 
III. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but 

shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.  
 

IV. If Members are opting for remote e-voting, they shall not vote by ballot paper and vice versa. 
However, in case Members cast their vote both by ballot paper and by remote e-voting, then voting 
done through remote e-voting shall prevail and voting done by ballot paper will be treated as 
invalid. 

 
V. Mr. Ranjit Binod Kejriwal, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed to act as the 

Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as well as the voting through Poll Paper, in a 
fair and transparent manner. 

 
VI. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the member 

as on the cut-off date i.e. 13thSeptember, 2023. 
 

VII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members as on the cut-off date, i.e. 13th 
September, 2023 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting / as well as voting 
through the ballot process at the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on 
the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only. 

 
VIII. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch 

of the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. 13th September, 2023, shall be entitled to 
exercise his/her vote either electronically i.e. remote e-voting or through the ballot process at the 
AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this part. 

 
IX. The Remote e-voting period will commence on Sunday, 17thSeptember, 2023 at 9.00 a.m. and will 

end on Tuesday, 19thSeptember, 2023 at 5.00 p.m. During this period, the members of the Company 
holding shares either in physical form or in demat form as on the Cut-off date i.e. 13thSeptember, 
2023, may cast their vote electronically. The members will not be able to cast their vote electronically 
beyond the date and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting module shall be automatically 
disabled for voting thereafter.  
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X. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently or cast the vote again. 
 

XI. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the meeting (polling paper) and through remote 
e-voting, will, not later than 2 working days of conclusion of the Meeting, make a consolidated 
scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairman. The results declared along with the 
consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company. The results shall be 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges. 

 
XII. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the 

date of the Meeting, i.e. 20thSeptember, 2023. 
 

XIII. Instructions to Members for e-voting are as under: 
 

i. The voting period starts on Sunday, 17th September, 2023 on open of working hours (i.e. 9:00 hours) 
and ends on the close of working hours (i.e. 05:00 hours), Tuesday, 19th September, 2023. During this 
period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 13th September, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

 
ii. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares 

of the Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e‐mail and 
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 13th August, 2023, may obtain the login ID and password 
bysending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered 
with NSDL for remote evoting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting 
your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 224 430 . In case of Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the 
Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut‐off date i.e. 13th August, 2023 
may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”. 
 

Step 1 :Access to NSDL e-Voting System 
 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securitiesin demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies,Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility. Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below: 
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 

on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 

e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
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click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless

voting experience.

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach

e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi

/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click

on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi

username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit

the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat

Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home

page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered

Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account.After successful

authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting

is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting

Service Providers.
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Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 

e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 1800 22 55 33 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

  

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

(a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

(b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

(c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company. 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 125228 then user ID is 125228001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

Page 17

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 

need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 

the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.’=nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 

your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to rbksurat@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional 
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shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their BoardResolution / 
Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Ms. Sarita Mote at 
evoting@nsdl.co.inv . 
 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@bccindia.com . 
 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@bccindia.com . If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are 
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and 
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user 
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 
 

Please note the following: 

 
A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting 
but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.  
 
A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of 
remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through polling paper. A person who is not a Member 
as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice of AGM for information purpose only. 
 
Other information: 

•   Your login id and password can be used by you exclusively for e-voting on the resolutions placed 
by the companies in which you are the shareholder. 

 

•   It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep it confidential. 
 

Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                                             

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) 

Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No. ACS-67837 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE: 
 
DETAILS OF DIRECTOR/KMP SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING:  
 
(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India) 
 
Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia, is proposed to be re- appointed as Director, who is liable to retire by rotation 
and as per the Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 
and Secretarial Standards his details are as under: 
 

Name of Director Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

DIN  02063706 

Date of Birth 16/02/1982 

Qualification H.S.C 

Expertise in specific functional areas Expert in Mobile Retail Marketing 

Experience 17 Years 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment/ 
Reappointment  

As per the resolution at item No 2 of the notice convening 
this meeting, Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia is liable to retire 
by rotation at the meeting and eligible for re-appointment 

Remuneration Last drawn Rs. 2,00,000 p.m 

Remuneration Proposed Rs. 2,00,000 p.m 

Date of First Appointment 01/04/2008 

Relationship with Directors/ Key 
Managerial Personnel 

Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia is the son of Mrs. 
Kamleshkumari Harbanslal Bhatia and brother of Mr. Sanjeev 
Harbanslal Bhatia. Hence, they are interested in the 
Resolution 

List of Companies in which directorship is 
held as on 31/03/2023 

As attached below 

Chairman / Member of the Committee of 
other Company 

Nil 

No. of Meetings of the Board Attended 
during the year 

14 

 
List of Companies in which Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia holds directorship as on 31st March, 2023: 
 

Sr. No. 
 

Name of the Company Nature of Interest Shareholding Date on which 
interest arose 

1.  Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) 
Limited 

Whole-time 
Director 

4,83,28,540 01/04/2008 
05/01/2008 

2.  SNV Distributors Private Limited Director 76,600 03/07/2013 

 
The Board recommends this Resolution for Members approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                                             

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) 

Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No. ACS-67837 
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________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
BOARD’S REPORT 

 
To, 
The Members of 
Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 
 
Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 15th Annual Report on the business and operations 
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS  
During the financial year ended 31st March 2023, your company has recorded a total revenue of Rs. 
34474.43lakhs against Rs. 25175.69 lakhs in the previous year, representing an increase of 36.93%. During the 
year, thecompany has incurred Profit of Rs. 848.63 lakhs as compared to profit of Rs. 527.26 lakhs in the 
previous year. A detailed analysis on the Company’s performance is included in the “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis” Report, which forms part of this Report.  
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Financial performance of the Company for Financial Year 2022-23 is summarized below: 

(Figure in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2023 

Year ended 
31.03.2022 

Revenue from operations 31348.18 23347.16 

Other Income 3126.25 1828.53 

Total Revenue 34474.43 25175.69 

Profit before tax and Exceptional Items 1131.54 707.64 

Less: Exceptional Items -- -- 

Profit before Taxation 1131.54 707.64 

-Current Tax 292.18 186.85 

-Deferred Tax (9.95) (6.47) 

-Income tax of earlier years   0.67 -- 

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 848.63 527.26 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax 2.20 2.98 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 850.83 530.24 

* Figures regrouped wherever necessary 
 
The company has disclosed its results on quarterly basis of which results are subjected to limited review and 
publishes audited financial results on an annual basis. The Financial Statements as stated above are also 
available on the Company’s website https://bhatiamobile.com/financial-report/ 
 
ROAD AHEAD 
Our vision of becoming one of the top retail mobile chains and moving towards sustainable growth. Our 
priorities are as follows: 
• Focus on increasing outlets with multiple products 
• Maintaining Price Competitiveness 
• Technology enabled inventory management system 
• Cross promotion through intelligent marketing 
• Moving up the value chain Expanding the product line under own brand 
 
DIVIDEND 
In order to conserve the resources for future growth of the Company, the Board of Directors has not declared 
any dividend for the year under review. The Dividend Distribution Policy duly approved by the Board of 
Directors in line with Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations”) has been uploaded on the Company’s website at  
https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/ 
 
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND 
As on 31 March 2023 the Company’s unclaimed dividend balance was Rs. 63,332/-. 
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
During the year under review, no amount was transferred to any Reserve. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL 
The Paid-up Share Capital as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 1251.52Lacs. During the Year, the Company has 
neither issued any shares nor has granted stock options or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2023, 100% of the 
total paid-up capital of the Company stands in the dematerialized form. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES 
As on March 31, 2023, the Company did not have any Subsidiary/ Associate Company. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES 
There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the company 
which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of this Report. 
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
During the Financial Year, there has been no change in the business of the company or in the nature of 
Business carried by the company during the financial year under review. 
 
STATUTORY INFORMATION 
The Company being basically engaged into the retail and whole sell distribution business of mobile 
handsets, tablets, data-cards, Television, mobile accessories, mobile related products. Apart from this 
business, the Company is not engaged in any other business/activities. 
 
DEPOSITS 
During the year, Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of the Section 73 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Details of money received from Directors 

S. No. Name of Directors O/S amount as on year 
end 

1. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 2.87 lacs 

2. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 12.56 lacs 

 
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 
There was no significant material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and company’s operation in nature. 
 
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
In accordance with Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia (DIN: 02063706), Whole Time Director of the Company, retire by 
rotation and is being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration is available on the website of the 
company at https://bhatiamobile.com/management/ 
 
Based on the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified from appointment 
under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The List of board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) for the F.Y. 2022-23 is as follow: 
 

Name of Directors Category & Designation Appointment 
date 

Change in 
Designation  

Resignation 
Date 

Mr. Sanjeev 
Harbanslal Bhatia 

Executive Managing 
Director 

25.03.2008 05.01.2018 - 

Mr. Nikhil 
Harbanslal Bhatia 

Executive Whole Time 
Director 

01.04.2008 05.01.2018 - 

Mrs. Kamleshkumari 
Harbanslal Bhatia 

Non Executive Director 30.03.2020 18.09.2020 - 

Mr. Arpit Non Executive 05.01.2018 - - 
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Arunkumar Jain Independent Director 

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil 
Arora 

Non Executive 
Independent Director 

05.01.2018 - - 

Mr. Rachit Naresh 
Narang 

Non Executive 
Independent Director 

05.01.2018 - - 

Mr. Ravindra 
Arunrao Sojal 

Chief Financial Officer 05.01.2018 -  

Mr. Sachin Agarwal Company Secretary 01.12.2021 - 13.12.2022 

 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As per amended section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 attachment of extract of annual return to Directors 
Report is discontinued.The Annual Return for FY 2022-23 is uploaded on the website of the Company and 
the same is available at https://bhatiamobile.com/annual-report/ 
 
CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Your Board endeavors that all contracts/ arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the 
financial year with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis only. 
 
During the year under review the Company had not entered into transaction with related parties which 
could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party 
transactions. The Policy on Related Party Transactions is uploaded on the website of the company. The web 
link is https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/ 
 
Further all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business 
and were on an arm’s length basis are attached herewith in Form No. AOC-2 in Annexure I. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR: 
The Details of All meeting of Board of Directors and Committee meeting had taken place during the year 
and their detailed composition along with their attendance forms the part of Corporate Governance Report 
as given in Annexure II. The composition of the Board and its committee is also available on the website of 
the company at https://bhatiamobile.com/management/ 
 
The following Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2022-23: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors 
Present 

1. 20.04.2022 6 6 

2. 28.05.2022 6 6 

3. 04.07.2022 6 6 

4. 02.08.2022 6 6 

5. 13.08.2022 6 6 

6. 27.08.2022 6 6 

7. 05.09.2022 6 6 

8. 15.09.2022 6 6 

9. 14.11.2022 6 6 

10. 21.12.2022 6 6 

11 02.02.2023 6 6 

12. 14.02.2023 6 6 

13. 15.03.2023 6 6 

14. 29.03.2023 6 6 

 
COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEE 
The detail of the composition of the Board and its committees thereof and detail of the changes in their 
composition if any is given in Annexure II in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT 
With reference to Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013, loans, guarantees and investments made 
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are as under: 
 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
Transaction 

Name of the 
Company 

Purpose of 
Transaction  

Amount involved in 
Transaction 
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1. Various Dates Manasi Sarees Private 
Limited 

Loan for business 
development 

30,32,482 

2. Various Dates Suncare Traders 
Limited 

Loan for business 
development 

2,93,63,879 

 
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
Company has received declaration from all the independent directors duly signed by them stating that they 
meet the criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. There has been 
no Change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the Company so as to 
qualify themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the relevant regulations.   
 
All the independent directors have cleared "Online Self-Assessment Test" examination with the Indian 
Institute of Corporate Affairs at Manesar. 
 
SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
In terms of requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors of the 
company have complied with the code of Independent Director. Independent Directors met separately 
on15th March, 2023 to inter alia review the performance of Non-Independent Directors (Including the 
Chairman), the entire Board and the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of the information between 
the Management and the Board.  
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM: 
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and 
employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the 
Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at 
https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/ 
 
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors hereby confirm: 
 
A. That in preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departments; 
 
B. That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs if the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for 
that period; 

 
C. That the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
D. That the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

 
E. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 
 
F. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
ANNUAL EVALUATION 
During the year, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance as well as the 
evaluation of the working of its Committees and individual Directors, including Chairman of the Board. This 
exercise was carried out through a structured questionnaire prepared separately for Board, Committee and 
individual Directors. 
 
The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, 
information and functioning, etc.  
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The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc. 
 
The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and 
committee meetings like decision making, participation in meeting, overall performance, etc. In addition, the 
chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 
The Board acknowledged certain key improvement areas emerging through this exercise and action plans to 
address these are in progress. The performance evaluation of the Non Independent Directors, performance 
of Board as a whole including Chairman was carried out by the Independent Directors at a separate meeting 
of the Independent Directors on 15th March, 2023. 
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent 
director being evaluated. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal financial control system which ensures that 
all the assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are authorized recorded and reported 
correctly. The internal audit covers a wide variety of operational matters and ensures compliance with 
specific standard with regards to availability and suitability of policies and procedures. During the year 
noreportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed. 
 
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
The Companies Act, 2013 re-emphasizes the need for an effective internal financial control system in the 
company. Rule 8(5) (viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires the information regarding adequacy 
of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to be disclosed in the board’ report. 
The detailed report forms part of Independent Auditors Report. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Your Company has incorporated the appropriate standards for corporate governance. Pursuant to 
Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company 
is filing Corporate Governance Report to stock exchange quarterly. However, as per Regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 company is 
giving report on corporate governance report in annual report of the company. Corporate Governance 
Report is as per Annexure - II. The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is attached in the report on Corporate Governance. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING 
With reference to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, the details of conservation of energy, 
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings are as per Annexure - III. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules 2014; the Board has undertaken the CSR activities as per Rule 4 of Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The details of CSR activities for the financial year 2022-
2023 forms part of this Board report in Annexure – IV 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
As per Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 2015, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given in Annexure - V. 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 
The Members at the 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 22, 2021, had 
appointed M/s. R P R & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 131964W) as the Statutory 
Auditor of the Company to hold office for a term of five years i.e., from the conclusion of the 13th Annual 
General Meeting until the conclusion of the 18th Annual General Meeting. Thus, no further action is required 
in this regard. 
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR 
The Company has appointed M/s. V. M. Patel & Associates, Cost Accountant, Surat as an Internal 
Auditorfor the term of 5 years from from F.Y. 2019-20 to 2023-24 in the Board meeting held on 30th May, 2019 
after obtaining his willingness and eligibility letter for appointment as Internal Auditor of the Company. 
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Internal Auditors are appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor reports their findings on the internal Audit of the Company to 
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Scope of Internal audit is approved by the Audit Committee. 
 
SECRETERIAL AUDITOR 
Your board has appointed Mr. Ranjit Binod Kejriwal, Practicing Company Secretary, as secretarial Auditor 
of the company for the period of 5 consecutive years starting from financial year 2020-2021. The secretarial 
report for the financial year 2022-2023 is attached as Annexure-VI. Report of secretarial auditor is self-
explanatory and need not any further clarification.  
 
COMMENTS ON AUDITOR’S REPORT 
The notes referred to in the Auditor Report are self-explanatory and they do not call for any further 
explanation as required under section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
There was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Disclosure pertaining to remuneration as required under section 
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 are as per Annexure - VII. 
 
The detailed remuneration policy of the Company is available on the below link: 
https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
Risks are events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company’s 
business. Risk Management is a structured approach to manage uncertainty. An enterprise wide approach to 
Risk Management is being adopted by the Company and key risks will now be managed within a unitary 
framework. As a formal roll-out, all business divisions and corporate functions will embrace Risk 
Management Structure, and make use of these in their decision making. Key business risks and their 
mitigation are considered in the annual/strategic business plans and in periodic management reviews. The 
risk management process over the period of time will become embedded into the Company’s business 
system and processes, such that our responses to risk remain current and dynamic. The detailed Statement 
on Risk Management has been attached in Annexure – VIII. 
 
CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION 
In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the CFO has certified to the Board of Directors of the 
Company with regard to the financial statements and other matters specified in the said regulation for the 
financial year 2022-2023. The certificate received from CFO is attached herewith as per Annexure – IX. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT 
Board of Directors has formulated and adopted Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel from January 19, 2018. During the year, Board of Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel has complied with general duties, rules, acts and regulations. In this regard certificate from 
Managing Directors as required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been received by the Board and the same is attached herewith as per 
Annexure – X. 
 
Code of Conduct form Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel is available on below link: 
https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Code-of-Conduct-1.pdf  
 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM THE AUDITORS REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF 
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATEGOVERNANCE: 
 
Corporate Governance is a set of process, practice and system which ensure that the Company is managed in 
a best interest of stakeholders. The key fundamental principles of corporate governance are transparency 
and accountability. At Bhatia, Company’s core business objective is to achieve growth with transparency, 
accountability and with independency. Company has adopted various corporate governance standard and 
doing business in ethical way by which Company has enhance stakeholders trust, shareholders wealth 
creation by improving shares valuation, market capitalization, etc. 

 
A certificate received from M/s R P R & Co., Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance, as required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached herewith as per Annexure – XI. 
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CERTIFICATION FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 
Mr. Ranjit Binod Kejriwal, Practicing Company Secretary has issued a certificate required under the listing 
regulations, confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the company has been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the company by SEBI/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed as Annexure XII. 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 
Our company goal has always been to create an open and safe workplace for every employee to feel 
empowered, irrespective of gender, sexual preferences, and other factors, and contribute to the best of their 
abilities. 
The Internal Committee (IC) has been constituted as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, and the committee includes external members from NGOs 
or with relevant experience. Half of the total members of the IC are women. The role of the IC is not 
restricted to mere redressal of complaints but also encompasses prevention and prohibition of sexual 
harassment.  
 
The Company did not receive any complaints on sexual harassment during the year 2022-23 and hence no 
complaints remain pending as of 31st March, 2023. 
 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA 
(ICSI) 
The Company complies with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 
 
FRAUD REPORTING 
During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by Auditors under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 
The company is not required to maintain Cost Records as specified by Central Government under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly such accounts and records are not made and maintained. 
 
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 
The Company has adopted a Code Of Internal Procedures And Conduct For Regulating, Monitoring And 
Reporting Of Trading By Insiders And Code Of Practices And Procedures For Fair Disclosure Of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated 
employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and 
prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period 
when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. 

 
The Company has a Prohibition of Insider Trading Policy and the same has been posted on the website of the 
Company at https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/ 
 
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT  
The Company believes that technological obsolescence is a reality. Only progressive research and 
development will help us to measure up to future challenges and opportunities. We invest in and encourage 
continuous innovation. During the year under review, expenditure on research and development is not 
significant in relation to the nature size of operations of Company. 
 
INSURANCE 
All the properties and the Insurable Interest of the company including building and stocks wherever 
necessary and to the extent required have been adequately insured. The company keeps reviewing the 
insurance amount every year as per requirement. 
 
APPRECIATION 
Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work, 
dedication and commitment and express their sincere thanks and appreciation to all the employees for their 
continued contribution, support and co-operation to the operations and performance of the company. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
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Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation of the co-operation and assistance received 
from Shareholders, Bankers, regulatory bodies and other business constituents during the year under 
review. 
 
Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the commitment displayed 
by all executives, officers and staff, resulting in successful performance of the Company during the year. 
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure - I 

 
Form No. AOC-2 

 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 
transactions under third proviso thereto 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis 

 

S
N 

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangement
s/transaction
s 

Duration of 
the 
contracts/ 
arrangement
s/ 
transactions 

Salient 
terms of 
the 
contracts or 
agreement 
or 
transaction
s including 
the value, 
if any 

Justifica
tion for 
entering 
into 
such 
contract
s or 
arrange
ments 
or 
transact
ions 

Date(s) 
of 
approva
l by the 
Board 

Amoun
t paid 
as 
advanc
e, if 
any 

Date 
on 
which 
the 
special 
resolut
ion 
was 
passed 
in 
genera
l 
meetin
g as 
requir
ed 
under 
first 
provis
o to 
section 
188 

NIL 

 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

SN Name(s) of the 
related party and 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangeme
nts/transact
ions 

Duration of 
the 
contracts/ 
arrangement
s/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
agreement or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval 
by the 
Board 

Amount paid 
as advance, if 
any 

1. Harbanslal Bhatia 
HUF 
HUF of Director 

Rent Paid Annually Rent per annum 
Rs. 3,60,000/- 

04/05/2021 NIL 

2. Hema Bhatia, 
Relative of Director 

Rent Paid Annually Rent per annum 
Rs. 4,50,000/- 

04/05/2021 NIL 

3. Kamleshkumari 
Bhatia, Director 

Rent Paid Annually Rent per annum 
Rs. 12,00,000/- 

04/05/2021 NIL 

4. Nikhil Bhatia, 
Whole-time 
Director 

Contracted 
Salary 

Monthly Salary per 
month Rs. 
2,00,000/- 

04/05/2021 NIL 

Rent Paid Annually Rent per annum 
Rs. 6,30,000/- 

5. Sanjeev Bhatia, 
Managing Director 

Contracted 
Salary 

Monthly Salary per 
month Rs. 
2,00,000/- 

04/05/2021 NIL 

Rent Paid Annually Rent per annum 
Rs. 9,00,000/- 

6. Sanjeev Bhatia  
HUF, 

Rent Paid Annually Rent per annum 
Rs. 3,60,000/- 

04/05/2021 NIL 
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HUF of Director 

7. Telecity Enterprises 
LLP, Director is 
Partner 

Purchase Annually At prevailing 
Market Price 

04/05/2021 NIL 

8. Naresh 
Telecommunication 
Firm of Relative of 
Director 

Purchase Annually At prevailing 
Market Price 

04/05/2021 NIL 

9. SNV Distributors 
Pvt. Ltd., Common 
Director 

Purchase  Annually At prevailing 
Market Price 

04/05/2021 NIL 

10. Mohit Enterprises, 
Director is Partner 

Purchase Annually At prevailing 
Market Price 

04/05/2021 NIL 

Sales Annually 

13. Ravindra Sojal, 
CFO 

Contracted 
Salary 

Annually  Salary Rs. 
5,44,000/‐ per 
anum 

04/05/2021 NIL 

14. Harshita Sojal,  
Wife of CFO  

Contracted 
Salary 

Annually Salary Rs. 
3,93,000/‐ per 
anum 

04/05/2021 NIL 

15. Sachin Agrawal* 
Company Secretary  
 

Contracted 
Salary 

Monthly Salary per 
month Rs. 
12,500/‐ 

01/12/2021 NIL 

* Sachin Agrawal has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance officer w.e.f 13/12/2022 

 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure - II 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

This report on Corporate Governance is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”). 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance oversees business affairs and strategies and ensures 
fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising customers, 
vendors, investors, shareholders, employees and the society at large. Your Company envisages on attaining 
a higher levels of transparency and accountability for the efficient and ethical conduct of business.  
 
The Company believes in adopting the best practices in the area of Corporate Governance. The Company 
has a legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. 
 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors, and Independent Directors. During the financial year 2022-23, the Board of Directors of the 
Company comprised of six Directors, which includes one Executive Managing Director, one Executive 
Whole Time Director, and one Non-Executive Director, and remaining three are Non-Executive Independent 
Directors including a Woman Director.  
 
As on date of this report Board of Directors of the company is as follows: 
 

Name of Directors Category & Designation 

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia Executive Managing Director 

Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia Executive Whole Time Director 

Mrs. Kamleshkumari Harbanslal 
Bhatia 

Non‐Executive Director 

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang Non‐Executive Independent Director 

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora Non‐Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain Non‐Executive Independent Director 

 
Details about the Company’s Directors and Board Meetings & Annual General Meeting attended by the 
Directors during the financial year 2022-23 are as under: 
 

Name of 
Director and 
Director 
Identification 
Number 
(DIN) 

Category No. of 
Director
ship 
held in 
other 
compan
ies in 
India 

No. of  other Board 
Committee in which  
he is  

Attendan
ce at Last 
AGM 

Attenda
nce at 
Board 
Meeting
s 

No. of 
Share 
held as on 
31.03.2023 Member Chairman 

Mr. Sanjeev 
Harbanslal 
Bhatia  
(DIN: 
02063671) 

MD/PD/ED 2 NIL NIL Yes 14 4,26,24,400 

Mr. Nikhil 
Harbanslal 
Bhatia  
(DIN: 
02063706) 

WTD/PD/ED 1 NIL NIL Yes 14 260 

Mrs. 
Kamleshkum
ari Harbanslal 
Bhatia  
(DIN: 
02066517) 

PD/NED - NIL NIL Yes 14 4,83,28,540 

Mr. Rachit 
Naresh 

ID/NED - NIL NIL Yes 14 NIL 
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Narang 
(DIN: 
08044845) 

Mrs. Rashmi 
Kapil Arora 
(DIN: 
07584412) 

ID/NED 1 NIL NIL Yes 14 3,20,000 

Mr. Arpit 
Arunkumar 
Jain  
(DIN: 
08044841) 

ID/NED - NIL NIL Yes 14 NIL 

 
*PD – Promoter Director, NED – Non Executive Directors, MD – Managing Directors, ED – Executive 
Director, 
WTD – Whole Time Director, ID – Independent Director 
 
Details of number of Board Meetings held in the financial year 
During the financial year 2022-2023, there were Fourteen (14) Board meetings held on following dates: 
 

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1. 20.04.2022 6 6 

2. 28.05.2022 6 6 

3. 04.07.2022 6 6 

4. 02.08.2022 6 6 

5. 13.08.2022 6 6 

6. 27.08.2022 6 6 

7. 05.09.2022 6 6 

8. 15.09.2022 6 6 

9. 14.11.2022 6 6 

10. 21.12.2022 6 6 

11 02.02.2023 6 6 

12. 14.02.2023 6 6 

13. 15.03.2023 6 6 

14. 29.03.2023 6 6 

 
Disclosure of Relationships between Directors inter-se 
No other Directors are related to each other except Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia and Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal 
Bhatia, who are related to each other as brothers and Mrs. Kamleshkumari Harbanslal Bhatia is Mother of 
Mr.Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia and Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia. 
 
Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors 
Except as disclosed below none of the Non-Executive Directors hold any share in the Company. 
 

S. No. Name of Non-Executive Director No. of Share held  

1. Kamleshkumari Harbanslal Bhatia 260 

2. Rashmi Kapil Arora 3,20,000 

 
Familiarization to Independent Directors 
The Independent Directors of the Company are familiarized with the various aspects of the Company 
provided with an overview of the requisite criteria of independence, roles, rights, duties and responsibilities 
of directors, terms of appointment of the Company and policies of the Company and other important 
regulatory aspects as relevant for directors. The Company, through its Executive Director or Manager as well 
as other Senior Managerial Personnel, conducts presentations/programs to familiarize the Independent 
Directors with the strategy, operations and functions of the Company inclusive of important developments 
in business. The details of number of programs attended and the cumulative hours spent by an independent 
director are uploaded on the website of the company. The web link is https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/  
 
Meeting of Independent Directors 
The Company’s independent directors meet at least once in a financial year without the presence of 
executive directors and management personnel to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors 
and Board as whole. 
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The Company has devised the Policy on Familiarization Programme for Independent Director and the same 
is available on the website of the Company https://bhatiamobile.com/policies/ 
 
During the financial year 2022‐2023, one (1) meeting of Independent Directors were held on following dates: 
15/03/2023. 
 
Attendance of Directors at independent Directors meeting held during the financial year is as under: 
 

Name of Director Categories No. of Meeting Attended 

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain Chairman 1 

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang Member 1 

 Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora Member 1 

 
Matrix highlighting core skills/expertise/competencies of the Board of Directors 
The Board of Directors have identified the following skills required for the Company and the availability of 
suchskills with the Board 
 

Sr. No. Essential Core skills/expertise/competencies 
required for the Company 

Core skills/expertise/competencies of the 
Board of Directors 

1.  Strategic and Business Leadership in Retail 
industry 

The Directors have eminent experience of over 
the decades in trading Mobile Phones & 
Accessories, Tablets, LED TVs and other 
Electronic Equipment. 

2.  Finance expertise The Board has eminent business leaders with 
deep Knowledge of finance and business. 

3.  Personal Values Personal characteristics matching the 
Company’s values, such as integrity, 
accountability, and high performance 
standards. 

4.  Good Corporate Governance Experience in developing and implementing 
good Corporate Governance practice, 
maintaining Board and Management 
accountability, managing stakeholder’s interest 
and Company’s responsibility towards 
customers, employees, supplier, regulatory 
Bodies and the community in which it 
operates. 

5.  Sales and Marketing Experience in developing strategies to grow 
sales and market share, creating brand, build 
brand awareness and enhance enterprise 
reputation. 

 
Names of Directors who have such Skills / Expertise / Competence 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors Strategic 
and 
Business 
Leadership 
in Retail 
Industry 

Finance 
Expertise 

Personal 
Values 

Good 
Corporate 
Governance 

Sales & 
Marketing 

1.  Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia  √ √ √ √ √ 

2.  Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia  √ √ √ √ √ 

3.  Mrs. Kamleshkumari 
Harbanslal Bhatia  

√  √ √  

4.  Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang √ √ √ √ √ 
5.  Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora  √ √ √ √  

6.  Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain  √ √ √ √ √ 
 
Independent Directors confirmation by the Board 
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfill the 
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conditions of independence specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. 
 
All the independent directors have cleared "Online Self-Assessment Test" examination with the Indian 
Institute of Corporate Affairs at' Manesar'. 
 
Detailed reasons of the resignation of an Independent Directors before expiry of his tenure and 
confirmation by the Board 
During the year no Independent Directors has resigned. 
 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia includes the following:  
1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 
2. To recommend to the Board, the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 

Company.  
3. To approve payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.  
4. To review with the management, the annual financial statements, auditor’s report thereon before 

submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.  
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.  
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions and  
g. Modified Opinions in the draft audit report, if any.  

 
5. To review with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 

approval. 
6. To review with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 
those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified 
institutional placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 
matter; 

7. To review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process. 
8. To approve or make any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties. 
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 
12. To review, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems. 
13. To review the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit. 

14. To discuss with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 
15. To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the Board. 

16. To discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non- payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism. 
19. To grant omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the company 

subject to conditions as prescribed in the Act. 
20. Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background etc. of the candidate. 
21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee. 
22. To call for comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope at audit, including 

observations of the auditors and review of financial statements before their submission to the Board and 
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to discuss any related issue with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the 
Company. 

23. To investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in section 177(4) of the Act or referred to it 
by the Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice from external sources 
and have full access to information contained in the records of the company. 

24. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from / investment by the holding company in 
subsidiary exceeding Rupees 100 crores or 10% of asset size of subsidiary, whichever is lower including 
existing loans / advances / investments. 

25. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 
amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders. 

 
Review of information by Audit Committee: 
The Audit Committee mandatorily reviews the following information: 
1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
2. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
3. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 
4. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee; and 
5. Statement of deviations: 

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to 
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 

b. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 
 

Composition, membership, meetings and attendance during the year 
The Audit Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors acts as a link 
between the Management, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors and further 
oversees the financial reporting process. 
 
The Audit Committee of the company consists of three Independent Directors and one Executive Director of 
the Company. All the Directors have good understanding Finance, Accounts and Law. The composition of 
the Committee along with attendance of the members at the Audit Committee meetings is furnished 
hereunder: 
 

Name Categories Nature of Directorship No. of 
meetings 
held 

No. of 
meeting 
attended 

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain Chairman Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

6 6 

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora Member Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

6 6 

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang Member Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

6 6 

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia Member Executive Director 6 6 

 
 
During the financial year 2022-23, Six (6) meetings of Audit Committee were held on following dates: 

28/05/2022 02/08/2022 13/08/2022 

14/11/2022 21/12/2022 14/02/2023 
 
 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Committee was 
present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held September 05, 2022. 
 

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNRATION COMMITTEE 
The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia includes the following: 
1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees; 

2. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such 
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The 
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person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities 
identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may: 

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required; 
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 
c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
4. Devising a policy on Board diversity, if any; 
5. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their 
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director ‘s performance. 

6. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 
report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

7. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 
8. To ensure the policy includes the following guiding principles: 

• The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully, 

• Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks 
and 

• Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the Company and its goals. 

 
The performance evaluation of the independent director was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs 
from all the independent directors on the basis of the criteria such as participation in decision making and 
rendering unbiased opinion; participation in initiating new ideas and planning of the company etc.  
 
The board reviewed the performance of the independent directors on the basis of the criteria such as the 
contribution in raising concerns to the Board, safeguarding of confidential information, rendering 
independent unbiased opinion etc. The web link is https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/04/Performance-Evaluation-Policy 
 
Composition, membership, meetings and attendance during the year: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations.  
 
During the financial year 2022-23, Three (3) meetings of Audit Committee were held on following dates: 

28/05/2022 02/08/2022 21/12/2022 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company comprised three members as on March 
31,2023. The composition of the Committee along with attendance of the members at the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee meetings is furnished hereunder: 
 
 

Name Categories Nature of Directorship No. of 
meetings 
held 

No. of 
meeting 
attended 

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar 
Jain 

Chairman Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

3 3 

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora Member Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

3 3 

Mr. Rachit Naresh 
Narang 

Member Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

3 3 

 
5. REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Company has adopted and implemented the Nomination and Remuneration Policy devised in 
accordance with Section 178(3) and (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 which is available on the website of the 
Company https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Remunreation-Policy 
 
The remuneration payable to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Person will 
involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short term and long term performance 
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and support in the achievement of Corporate Goals. 
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Presently the company doesn’t pay any sitting fees to its non-executive director. The criteria for making 
payment to the non-executive director is available on the website of the company 
https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Terms-and-Condition-of-Appointment-of-
Independent-Director.pdf  
 

6. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia includes the following: 
i. To resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non- receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, review 
of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc;  

ii. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;  
iii. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;  
iv. Review of various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/ statutory notices 
by the shareholders of the Company. 

 
Composition and membership of the Committee: 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Listing Regulations. 
 
During the financial year 2022-23, Four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held on following dates: 

28/05/2022 13/08/2022 14/11/2022 14/02/2023 

 
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company comprises of three members. Composition along 
with attendance of the members of the Committee is as follows: 
 

Name Categories Nature of Directorship No. of 
meetings 
held 

No. of 
meeting 
attended 

Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora Chairman Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Arpit Arunkumar Jain Member Non‐Executive Independent 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia Member Executive Director 4 4 
 
Compliance Officer: 
Mr. Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal,  
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer  
Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 
132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre,   
Ring Road, Surat ‐395002 
 
Pursuant to the Regulation 13(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; details of shareholder complaints during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 are as 
follows: 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Number of Complaints 

1 Number of Shareholders’ Complaints Pending at the end of the year NIL 

2 Number of Shareholders’ Complaints received during the year NIL 

3 Number of Shareholders’ Complaints disposed during the year NIL 

4 Number of Shareholders’ Complaints remain unresolved during the 
year 

NIL 

 
 

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.  
 
During the financial year 2022-23, Two (2) meetings of Audit Committee were held on following dates: 

14/02/2023 31/03/2023 
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The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company comprised three members as on March 31, 
2023. The composition of the Committee along with attendance of the members at the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee meetings is furnished hereunder: 
 

Name Categories Nature of 
Directorship 

No. of 
meetings 
held 

No. of 
meeting 
attended 

Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia Chairman Executive Managing 
Director 

2 2 

Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia Member Executive Whole Time 
Director 

2 2 

Mr. Rachit Naresh Narang Member Non‐Executive 
Independent Director 

2 2 

 
The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia includes the following: 

i. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013;  

ii. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities as prescribed in Schedule 
VII to the said Act;  

iii. To monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time. 
 

8. GENERAL BODY MEETING 
The details of Annual General Meetings held during the last three years are as follows: 
 
Year Day, Date and Time Venue 
2019-20 Friday, 18th September, 2020 at 

11:00 A.M. 
132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, 
Ring Road, Surat -395002 Gujarat 

2020-21 Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021 
at 11:00 A.M 

Through Video Conferencing 

2021-22 Monday, 05th September, 2022 at 
11:00 A.M 

Shop No. 203, Ground Floor, Bhatia 
Complex, Nr. Sosyo Circle Bamroli 
Road, Surat. 394210 

 
The details of Resolution(s) which were passed in the last three Annual General Meetings (“AGM”) of 
the Company along with details of Postal Ballot & voting pattern are as follows: 
 

Date of AGM Resolution Ordinary/ Special Favor Against 

Ballot E-
Voting 

Ballot E-
Voting 

18th September, 
2020 

Adoption of 
Annual Accounts, 
Auditor’s & 
Director’s Report 

Ordinary 0 9314880 0 0 

Declaration of 
Dividend 

Ordinary 0 9314880 0 0 

Re-appointment of 
Mr. Nikhil 
Harbanslal Bhatia 
(DIN: 02063706), 
Whole Time 
Director. Who 
retires by rotation 
and being eligible, 
offers himself for 
reappointment. 

Ordinary 0 222000 0 0 

Appointment Of 
Kamleshkumari 
Harbanslal Bhatia, 
Director Of The 
Company. 

Ordinary 0 222000 0 0 

22nd September, 
2021 

Adoption of 
Annual Accounts, 
Auditor’s & 

Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0 
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Director’s Report 

Declaration of 
Dividend 

Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0 

Re-appointment of 
Mr. Sanjeev 
Harbanslal Bhatia 
(DIN: 02063671), 
Managing Director. 
Who retires by 
rotation and being 
eligible, offers 
himself for 
reappointment.. 

Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0 

Appointment Of 
Statutory Auditor 
M/s RPR & Co. 

Ordinary 0 9357203 0 0 

05th September, 
2022 

Adoption of 
Annual Accounts, 
Auditor’s & 
Director’s Report 

Ordinary 0 51059729 0 1010 

Re-appointment of 
Mrs. 
Kamleshkumari 
Bhatia (DIN: 
02066517), 
Executive Director. 
Who retires by 
rotation and being 
eligible, offers 
himself for 
reappointment. 

Ordinary 0 1407729 0 1000 

Re‐appointment of 
Mr. Sanjeev 
Harbanslal Bhatia 
(DIN: 02063671), as 
the Managing 
Director of the 
Company for a 
further period of 5 
(Five) years 

Special 0 1408729 0 0 

Re-appointment of 
Mr. Nikhil 
Harbanslal Bhatia 
(DIN: 02063706), as 
the Whole‐Time 
Director of the 
Company for a 
further period of 5 
(Five) years 

Special 0 1408729 0 0 

Re-appointment of 
Mrs. Rashmi Kapil 
Arora (DIN: 
07584412), as the 
Independent 
Director of the 
Company for a 
further period of 5 
(Five) years. 

Special 0 51060729 0 0 

Re‐appointment of 
Mr. Rachit Naresh 
Narang (DIN: 
08044845), as the 
Independent 

Special 0 51059729 0 1000 
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Director of the 
Company for a 
further period of 5 
(Five) years. 

Re‐appointment of 
Mr. Arpit 
Arunkumar Jain 
(DIN: 08044841), as 
the Independent 
Director of the 
Company for a 
further period of 5 
(Five) years. 
 

Special 0 51059729 0 1000 

 Approval of 
Related Party 
Transaction (s): 

Special 0 1408729 0 0 

 
9. NAME AND ADDRESS OF SCRUTINIZER OR THE PERSON WHO CONDUCTED THE REMOTE 

EVOTING AND BALLOT EXERCISE:  
 
CS Ranjit Binod Kejriwal 
Practicing Company Secretary, 
1, Aastha, 2/906, Hira Modi Sheri, 
Opp. Gujarat Samachar Press,  
Sagrampura, Ring Road,  
Surat – 395002, Gujarat. 
Email: rbksurat@gmail.com 
Ph: +91-261-2331123 
 

10. POSTAL BALLOT 
During the financial year 2022-23, Company has not passed any resolutions through postal ballot. 
 
As per amended Companies Act, 2013, Company is not proposing Postal Ballot for 15th AGM and thus 
procedure for postal ballot is not applicable. 
 

11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
Financial Results: Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited believes in to publish all the financial 
information to stakeholders within the stipulations provided under the law. During the year, Company has 
declared all financial results within the timeline provided under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 
Quarterly/Half Yearly/ Yearly financial results: The Yearly/Half yearly/ Quarterly financial results of the 
Company are normally published in website of the Company i.e. on https://bhatiamobile.com/financial-
report/. Financial results for the year 2022-2023 have been submitted to stock exchange within 30 minutes 
from the conclusion of Board Meeting in which financial results have been approved. During the year, 
following Quarterly, half yearly and yearly financial results have been submitted on BSE portal 

Period of Financial Results Date 

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2022 

13/08/2022 

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter & half 
year ended September 30, 2022 

14/11/2022 

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended 
December 31, 2022 

14/02/2023 

Audited Financial Results for the quarter and year 
ended March 31, 2023 

29/05/2023 

 
The company has published the Financial Results in “Free press Gujarat” (English) and Lokmitra (Gujarati) 
Newspapers and intimated the same to the stock exchange and posted on the website of the company at 
https://bhatiamobile.com/financial-report/ 
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News Release/ Presentation made to the Investors: All the Press Release and the presentation made to 
Institutional Investor/ Analysts are uploaded on the official website of the company 
https://bhatiamobile.com/investors-presentation/ 
 
Website: Company’s official website www.bhatiamobile.com contains separate tab “Investor Relations” for 
investors, in which notices of the Board Meetings, Annual Reports, Investor Presentations, Shareholding 
Pattern and other announcements made to stock exchange are displayed in due course for the shareholders 
information. 
 
Email IDs for investors: The Company has formulated separate email id csbhatia@bhatiamobile.com for 
investor service, investor can also contact share Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company on their 
email id support@purvashare.com and the same is available on website of the Company 
www.bhatiamobile.com 
 
SEBI SCORES: For investor compliant redressal SEBI has developed SCORES platform in which investor 
can lodged any complaint against the Company for any grievance. The Company also uploads the action 
taken report in the SCORES platform for redressal of investor complaint.  
 

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

Date, Time and Venue of AGM Monday, 20th September, 2023, at Shop No. 203, 
Ground Floor, Bhatia Complex, Nr. Sosyo Circle 
Bamroli Road, Surat, 394210 At 11:00 A.M. 

Financial Year From 1st April 2022 to 31st March, 2023 

Date of Book Closure From Tuesday, the 14th day of September, 2023 to 
Monday, the 20th day of September, 2023 (both day 
inclusive) 

 
LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE 
The Equity Shares of the Company as on the date are listed on the Main Board of BSE Limited. The 
Company confirms that it has paid Annual Listing Fee for the Financial Year 2022-2023 to the BSE Limited. 
 
STOCK CODE OF THE COMPANY 
 

ISIN   : INE341Z01025 
Scrip Name  : BHATIA 
Security Code  : 540956  
Type of Shares  : Equity Shares 
No. of paid up shares : 12,51,52,000 
 
NAME OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE 
 

BSE Limited  
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001 
Tel. :  022-22721233/4,  
Fax :  022-22721919 
 
MARKET PRICE DATA 
 

Data of market price high, low for the year 2022-2023 is given below: 

Month High Low Volume Turnover 
(Amount in 
Rs.) 

Closing (Rs.) 

April, 2022 30.50 21.00 5082123 126018498 26.30 

May, 2022 29.50 22.35 2146954 54257151 28.05 

June,2022 41.45 26.10 4487307 156957363 36.45 

July, 2022 52.40 30.60 5538985 230549039 35.00 

August, 2022 34.30 26.70 1396753 42875162 31.60 

September, 2022 40.50 31.60 2880052 107705197 39.80 

October, 2022 59.50 35.45 5304976 264923817 36.15 

November, 2022 39.00 32.45 2408051 84946364 34.35 

December, 2022 41.30 28.05 6556075 239379928 41.30 

January, 2023 43.35 20.75 22251729 723343088 22.40 

February, 2023 23.95 16.20 6770017 135622584 20.55 

March, 2023 24.50 16.29 2835701 56826359 17.02 
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PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO OTHER INDICES 
Table below gives the performance comparison of M/s. Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited to 
BSE Sensex for the F.Y.2022-2023 on month to month closing figures: 
 

Month BSE Sensex Change in % BHATIA (Closing Price at 
BSE) 

Change in % 

April 2022 57060.87 -2.57 26.30 13.36 

May 2022 55566.41 -2.62 28.05 6.65 

June 2022 53018.94 -4.58 36.45 29.95 

July 2022 57570.25 8.58 35.00 -3.98 

August 2022 59537.07 3.42 31.60 -9.71 

September 2022 57426.92 -3.54 39.80 25.95 

October 2022 60746.59 5.78 36.15 -9.17 

November 2022 63099.65 3.87 34.35 -4.98 

December 2022 60840.74 -3.58 41.30 20.23 

January 2023 59549.90 -2.12 22.40 -45.76 

February 2023 58962.12 -0.99 20.55 -8.26 

March 2023 58991.52 0.05 17.02 -17.18 

 
in case the securities are suspended from trading, the director’s report shall explain the reason there of: 
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS: 
Purva Sharegistry (India)Private Limited                   
Category I Registrar to Issue & Share Transfer Agents   
Unit No. 9 Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt.,    
J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E), 
Mumbai-400011, Maharashtra,  
Email Id: support@purvashare.com 
Website: www.purvashare.com  
Ph. No.: +91-022-31998810/49614132    
Tele Fax: +91-022-2301 2517 
 
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 
The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized mode. The dematerialized shares are 
transferable through the depository system. The power of share transfer has been delegated to the 
designated officials of Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company, Purva Sharegistry (India) Private 
Limited. The Registrar & Transfer Agent processes the share transfers within a period of fifteen days from 
the date of receipt of the transfer documents. 
 
The Company has obtained yearly certificate from Company Secretary in Practice for compliance of share 
transfer formalities as per the requirement of Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has also carried out Quarterly Secretarial Audit for 
reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as required under SEBI circular no. 16 dated 31st December, 2002. 
 
INVESTOR HELPDESK 
Shareholders/Investors can also send their queries through e-mail to the Company at 
csbhatia@bhatiamobile.com. This designated e-mail has also been displayed on the Company’s website 
https://bhatiamobile.com/investor-contact/under the section Investor contact. 
 

COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
Mr. Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS ON MARCH 31, 2023: 
 
On the basis of Shareholdings 
 

Shareholding of 
Nominal Value 

No. of 
Shareholders 

% of Shareholders Share Amount % of Share 
Amount 

1 to 100 10215 59.34 340300 0.27 
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101 to 200 1928 11.20 308043 0.25 

201 to 500 2154 12.51 755717 0.60 

501 to 1000 1198 6.96 941856 0.75 

1001 to 5000 1246 7.24 2764373 2.21 

5001 to 10000 194 1.13 1413973 1.13 

10001 to 100000 227 1.32 6028852 4.82 

100001 to Above 53 0.31 112598886 89.97 

Total 17215 100 125152000 100 

 
On the basis of Category 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Description No. of Members No. of Shares 

Nos. % Nos. % 

 Promoters Holding 
Directors & Relatives 
Bodies Corporate 
 
Non Promoter Holding 
Institutions 
Mutual Funds 
 
Non-Institutions 
Resident Individual 
HUF 
Foreign Individuals or NRI 
Bodies Corporate 
LLP 
Clearing Member 
Director and Directors Relative 

 
7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17015 
117 
35 
16 
2 
21 
2 

 
0.04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
98.84 
0.68 
0.20 
0.09 
0.01 
0.12 
0.01 

 
92178190 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
23392931 
1558447 
264917 
1810028 
35431 
5312056 
600000 

 
73.65 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18.69 
1.25 
0.21 
1.45 
0.03 
4.24 
0.48 

 Total 17215 100 125152000 100 

 
 
NOMINATION FACILITY 
It is in the interest of the shareholders to appoint nominee for their investments in the Company. Those 
members, who are holding shares in physical mode and have not appointed nominee or want to change the 
nomination, are requested to send us nomination form duly filed in and signed by all the joint holders. 
 
OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS/ANY OTHER CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 
The Company does not have any outstanding instruments of the captioned type. 
 
PROCEEDS FROM PUBLIC ISSUE / RIGHTS ISSUE / PREFERENTIAL ISSUE / WARRANT 
CONVERSION 
The Company does not have such proceeds from Public Issue, Right Issue, Preferential Issue and Warrant 
Conversion. 
 
DETAILS OF DIVIDEND 
The Board does not recommend any dividend for the current year. 
 
DETAILS OF UNPAID DIVIDEND 
The company declared Interim Dividend for FY 2022-23 on 13th August, 2022 and has balance in its Unpaid 
Dividend Account. The Statement of Unpaid Dividend will be available on the website of the company at 
https://bhatiamobile.com/2022-23/  
 
PLANT LOCATION 
Being in the trading company, the company does not have any plants. However, your company has 163 
retail stores and 9 franchised stores. 
 
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 
(a) Registrar & Transfer Agents:    
Category I Registrar to Issue & Share Transfer Agents   
Unit No. 9 Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt.,    
J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E), 
Mumbai-400011, Maharashtra,  
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Email Id: support@purvashare.com 
Website: www.purvashare.com  
Ph. No.: +91-022-31998810/49614132    
Tele Fax: +91-022-2301 2517 
 
(b) Registered Office: 
132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, 
Ring Road, Surat – 395002, Gujarat 
Ph. No.: 0261 2349892  
Email: info@bhatiamobile.com 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com 
 

13. CREDIT RATING: NIL 
 

14. DISCLOSURES 
 
DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
In preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The significant accounting policies which 
are consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Accounts. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Company has to frame a formal Risk Management Framework for risk assessment and risk 
minimization to ensure smooth operation and effective management control. The Audit Committee has to 
review the adequacy of the risk management framework of the Company, the key risks associated with the 
business and to measure the steps to minimize the same. 
 
MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY 
The Company does not have any material subsidiary. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 
The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of Trading by 
Insiders in accordance with the requirement of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Code of internal procedures and conduct for Regulating, monitoring and 
Reporting of Trading by Insiders is available on https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/04/Prohibition-of-Insider-Trading-Policy.pdf  
 
CERTIFICATION FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 
Mr. Ranjit Binod Kejriwal, Practicing Company Secretary has issued a certificate required under the listing 
regulations, confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the company has been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the company by SEBI/Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed as Annexure XII. 
 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM EITHER THE AUDITORS OR PRACTICING COMPANY 
SECRETARIES REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
The Compliance Certificate on corporate Governance for the Year ended 31st March, 2023, issue by M/s. R P 
R & Co., Statutory Auditors of the Company forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. The certificate 
is enclosed as Annexure XI. 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY  
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and 
employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to the 
Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at 
https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Vigil-Mechanism-Whistle-Blower-Policy-1.pdf 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION  
The list of related party transactions entered by the Company during the year is mentioned in point XVIII of 
note no. 1 of Related Party Disclosures (As identified by management) of the financial statement. All related 
party transactions are monitored by Audit Committee of the Company. Company’s policy on related party 
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transaction is available on below link: https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Related-
Party-Transaction-Policy-1.pdf  
 
FEES TO STATUTORY AUDITOR 
Company has paid total fees paid by the company to the Statutory Auditor as mentioned below: 

Payment to Statutory Auditor FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 

Audit Fees Rs. 35,000 /- Rs. 35,000 /- 

Tax Audit Fees Rs. 15,000 /- Rs. 15,000 /- 

 
15. DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
The details of complaints filed, disposed & pending as on 31st March, 2023 are given below: 

 
Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loan and advances in the nature of loans to 
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’: NIL 
 

16. STATUTORY COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES AND STRICTURES  
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges / Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI) / and Statutory Authorities to the extent applicable, the company’s shares are listed on the 
BSE SME Platform on 21st February, 2018 and has migrated to the main board of BSE w.e.f September 17, 
2020, and accordingly no penalties have been levied or strictures have been imposed on the Company on any 
matter related to capital markets during the year.   
 

17. MANDATORY & NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance and endeavors 
to adopt good corporate governance practices which help in adoption of non-mandatory requirements.  
 
UPDATE E-MAILS FOR RECEIVING NOTICE/DOCUMENTS IN E-MODE 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has through its circulars issued in 2011, allowed service of 
documents by companies including Notice calling General Meeting(s), Annual Report etc. to their 
shareholders through electronic mode. This green initiative was taken by MCA to reduce paper consumption 
and contribute towards a green environment. As a responsible citizen, your company fully supports the 
MCA’s endeavor. 
In accordance of the same, your company had proposed to send Notice calling General Meetings, Annual 
Report and other documents in electronic mode in future to all the shareholders on their email addresses. It 
was also requested to inform the Company in case the shareholders wish to receive the above documents in 
physical form. Accordingly, the Annual Report along with Notice will be sent to the shareholders in 
electronic mode at their email addresses and members are requested to update their email address through 
following link https://www.purvashare.com/email-and-phone-updation/  
 
The shareholders may register their email addresses with their Depository through Depository Participant. 
 
UPDATE YOUR CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS/ BANK MANDATE/PAN/ EMAIL ID 
Shareholder(s) holding shares in dematerialized for are requested to notify changes in Bank details/ 
address/ email ID directly with their respective DPs. 
 
QUOTE FOLIO NO. / DP ID NO. 
Shareholders/ Beneficial owners are requested to quote their DP ID no. in all the correspondence with the 
Company. Shareholders are also requested to quote their Email ID and contact number for prompt reply to 
their correspondence. 
 

18. DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS  
 

 
Sexual 
Harassment 

Discrimination 
at Workplace 

Child labour 

Number of complaints filed during the financial 
year 

Nil Nil Nil 

Number of complaints disposed of during the 
financial year 

Nil Nil Nil 

Number of complaints pending as on end of the 
financial year 

Nil Nil Nil 

Action Taken for the complaints received Nil Nil Nil 
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THE BOARD  
The chairman of the company is an Executive Director.  
 
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS 
Quarterly, Half yearly and yearly declaration of financial performance is uploaded on the website of the 
company https://bhatiamobile.com/financial-report/ as soon as it is intimated to the stock exchange.  
 
MODIFIED OPINION(S) IN AUDIT REPORT 
Standard practices and procedures are followed to ensure unmodified financial statements.  
 
REPORTING OF INTERNAL AUDITOR  
The Company has appointed M/s V. M. Patel & Associates as the Internal Auditor of the Company for five 
years from F.Y. 2019-20 to 2023-24. The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee periodically with 
Internal Audit Report prepared on quarterly basis. 
 
The Internal Auditors M/s V. M. Patel & Associates, Cost Accountant have reported directly to the Audit 
Committee of the Company. 
 

19. THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS 
SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF 
REGULATION 46 
The company has complied with the provisions of regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 
(2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure – III 
 

AS PER RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 
 
 
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy 

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy               NIL 

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment 

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption 

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development 

or import substitution 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year)   

a. The details of technology imported                                                                                                             NIL                     

b. The year of import         

c. Weather the technology been fully absorbed       

d. If not fully absorbed areas where absorption has not taken place & reasons thereof 

(iv) The expenditure incurred on research & development during the year 2022-2023 
 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 
 
The Foreign Exchange earning in terms of actual inflows 
Foreign Exchange earnings during the financial year 2022-23:   NIL 
 
The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows 
Foreign Exchange outgo during the financial year 2022-23:   NIL 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure - IV 

 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES AS PER 
SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 
AS PER SECTION 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
1.  Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company: 

 
Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited is committed to conduct business in a socially, 
economically and environmentally responsible and sustainable manner, which enables the creation 
and distribution of wealth for the betterment of all its stakeholders, internal as well as external, 
through the implementation and integration of ethical systems and sustainable management 
practices. For this, company had laid a balanced emphasis on all aspects of corporate social 
responsibility and sustainability with regard to its internal operations, activities and processes, as 
well as undertake initiatives and projects to facilitate awareness program for preventing disease and 
building immunity, promoting education, eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, 
environment protection, promotion of green and energy efficient technologies and upliftment of the 
marginalized and underprivileged sections of the society. 
 
The CSR provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Schedule VII, or the CSR rules are inviolable.  
 
The CSR Committee so constituted formulated Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR 
Policy) on23/10/2018 and the Board of Directors of the Company ('Board') has approved the same as 
per recommendation of CSR Committee. Web link: https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/04/CSR-Policy-1.pdf 

 

2.  Composition of the CSR Committee: 
 

 Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation/ 
Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
attended 
during the year 

 1.  Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal 
Bhatia 

Chairman      
(Managing 
Director) 

2 2 

 2.  Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal 
Bhatia 

Member 
(Whole Time 
Director) 

2 2 

 3.  Mr. Rachit Naresh 
Narang 

Member 
(Independent 
Director) 

2 2 

      
3.   Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 

by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https://bhatiamobile.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/04/CSR-Policy-1.pdf 
 

4.  Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried 
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not Applicable 

5.  Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year:- 

Profit Calculated as per provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 for last three years: 
2019-20  : Rs. 7,32,82,869/- 
2020-21  : Rs. 5,30,88,902/- 
2021-22                       :             Rs. 7,07,64,074/- 

 (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) i.e. for last three financial 

years: Rs. 13,14,239/- 

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 
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NIL  

 (c) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Rs. 3,60,104/- 

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5a+5b-5c): Rs. 9,54,135/- 

6.  a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 
Project): Company spent on CSR Projects other than Ongoing Project and detail 
mentioned in annexure-A 

 b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL 

 c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL 

 d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+d+e): Rs. 9,58,587/- 

 e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: NIL 

  Amount unspent (in Rs.) 

 Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year (in 
Rs.) 

 

Total Amount 
transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per 
Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to Section 135(5) 

  Amount Date of 
Transfer 

Name of Fund Amount Date of 
Transfer 

 Rs. 9,58,587 /- -- -- -- -- -- 

 f) Excess amount for set-off, if any 

 Sr.  No. Particular Amount in Rs. 

 (1) (2) (3) 

 1.  Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per 
Section 135(5)* 

9,54,135 

 2.  Total amount spent for the Financial Year 9,58,587 

 3.  Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 4,452 

 4.  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 

NIL 

 5.  Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-
(iv)] 

4,452 

 *Note: After setting off of surplus of previous year of Rs. 3,60,104 /- 

7.  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable 

8.  Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No 

9.  Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per Section 135(5): Not Applicable 

 
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure A 

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

S. 
N. 

Name of 
Project 

Item 
from 
the list 
of 
activitie
s in 
schedul
e VII of 
the act 

Local 
area 
yes/no 

Location of 
the project 

Amount 
allocated 
for the 
project (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 
the current 
financial 
year 

Amount 
transferred 
to unspent 
CSR 
account for 
the project 
as per 
Section 
135(6) 

Mode of 
implem
entation 
– Direct 
(yes/No) 

Mode of 
implementation -
through 
implementation 
agency 

    State Dist.     Name CSR 
Registr
ation 
No. 

1 Sanitation   (i) Local 
Area 

Gujarat Surat Rs. 6,88,587 Rs. 6,88,587 NIL Yes - - 

2 Healthcare (i) Local 
Area 

Gujarat Surat Rs. 2,70,000 Rs. 2,70,000 NIL No Shree 
Adarsh 
Punjabi 
Samaj 

CSR000
58136. 
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Annexure - V 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
This section shall include discussion on the following matters within the limits set by the listed entity’s 
competitive position: 
1. Industry structure and developments.  

2. Opportunities and Threats.  

3. Segment–wise or product-wise performance.  

4. Outlook 

5. Risks and Concerns 

6. Internal control systems and their adequacy 

7. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.  

8. Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people 

employed. 

9. Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous 

financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations therefor, including:  

i. Debtors Turnover  

ii. Inventory Turnover  

iii. Interest Coverage Ratio  

iv. Current Ratio  

v. Debt Equity Ratio  

vi. Operating Profit Margin (%)  

vii. Net Profit Margin (%) 

or sector-specific equivalent ratios, as applicable. 
 
10. Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year 

along with a detailed explanation thereof. 

 

This Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company 
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of 
new information, future events, or otherwise. Actual results, performances or achievements could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. This report should be read 
in conjunction with the included financial statements and the notes. 
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 Bhatia 

Communications 

and Retail (India) 

Limited 

Total Revenue 

34474 Lakhs 

 

Franchised Stores  

9 

 

Retail Stores  

163 

 

Experience 

20 years+ 

Our Team 

150 Members+ 
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Industry Structure and Developments 
 
Global Economic 
 
The year 2022 began with cautious optimism as the lingering effects of the Covid-19 pandemic continued to 
subside. However, the global economy still had to struggle with several headwinds in the form of increasing 
inflation, geopolitical tensions, Russia-Ukraine conflict and a tightening monetary policy. To control the 
inflationary pressure, central banks of various countries increased the interest rate, which impacted the bond 
market. Major international banks faced the heat from the tightened monetary policy, as it placed them on a 
shaky ground, further deteriorating their performance, including the collapse of Silicon Valley Bank. 
Moreover, the anticipated growth rate has also contracted from 3.4% in 2022 to 2.8% in 2023 because of these 
events. Central banks of a host of countries have launched a robust fight against rising inflation. The fight is 
starting to pay off, but central banks must continue their efforts. As a result of a weaker global demand and 
the implementation of tighter monetary policies, global inflation is anticipated to decrease from an average 
of 8.7% in 2022 to 7.0% in 2023. Despite efforts to control inflation, core inflation rates persistently remain 
high in most regions. The combination of supply chain bottlenecks, generous Government spending, tight 
labour markets and a commodity shock – triggered by the Russian invasion of Ukraine – have together 
contributed to this trend. The persistent volatility around high inflation, rising recession risks and monetary 
policy uncertainty has led to significant fluctuations in financial markets. However, both inflation and core 
inflation are showing signs of improvement as a result of concerted efforts. 
 
Outlook 
 
Despite challenges faced, the world economy is projected to grow at 3.0% in 2024. Advanced economies is 
anticipated to grow from 1.3% in 2023 to 1.4% in 2024. Conversely, emerging market and developing 
economies are projected to have more promising economic prospects, with an average growth rate predicted 
at 3.9% in 2023 and an anticipated increase to 4.2% in 2024. In order to balance the goals of boosting 
economic output and controlling inflation, macroeconomic policies to be thoughtfully calibrated. Effective 
coordination between monetary and fiscal policies is projected to mitigate the potential of an extended and 
severe economic downturn. It is in the best interest of all the countries to engage in stronger international 
collaboration to mobilise resources and avoid further disruptions 
 
Indian Economy 
 
The year 2022-23 witnessed India maintaining a steady trajectory of economic recovery, continued from 
2021-22. The resilience of Indian economy owes it to a host of factors, including the widespread 
administration of the Covid-19 pandemic vaccinations. Moreover, an optimistic business environment and 
robust industrial output have provided strong momentum for the growth of India’s economy. The 
manufacturing Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI), compiled by S&P Global rose to 57.8 in December 2022 
from 55.7 in November 2022. The PMI average for the third quarter of the fiscal stood at 56.3. The fourth 
quarter PMI averaged to 58.7 rising to a 31 month high. Several indicators including total GST collections, 
digital transaction volume, electricity demand, rail & air passenger and freight traffic, petroleum product 
consumption, and coal production have pointed towards a positive recovery trajectory. Private consumption 
has rebounded, and overtaken export stimuli as the primary growth driver. This increase in private 
consumption has further augmented production activity, resulting in higher capacity utilisation across 
various sectors. 
 
These combined factors have resulted in growth in GDP to 7.2% in FY 2022-23, positioning India as one of 
the fastest growing economies globally. The country is well-placed to weather global spillovers compared to 
other emerging markets.  
 
India’s economy is well-positioned to weather global spillovers compared to other emerging markets. This is 
partly due to the country’s sizeable domestic market and a steady increase in the capital expenditure of the 
Government. This has also contributed to an increase in employment. The ‘Mahatma Gandhi National Rural 
Employment Guarantee Scheme’ (MGNREGS) has been instrumental in generating employment 
opportunities directly in rural areas, while also creating avenues for rural households to diversify their 
income streams. Despite food scarcity across the globe, initiatives such as ‘PM-Kisan’ and ‘PM Garib Kalyan 
Yojana’ have played a crucial role in ensuring food security in the country and helping the Indian economy 
to remain immune to these challenges. 
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Outlook 
The outlook for India continues to remain bright, with an investment boom sparking sharp increases in 
factory output, bank lending and consumer purchases. Moreover, this economic expansion is anticipated to 
boost business confidence and serve as a catalyst for increased private sector investment. The resultant 
optimism and enthusiasm among investors are further set to fuel the growth of the Indian economy 
 
Indian Consumer Durable Industry 
In India, there is a rising demand for various consumer durable goods due to increasing disposable income 
and technological advancements. As a result, there is intense competition among the numerous consumer 
durable brands, present in the country. Multinational organisations recognise the immense potential for 
growth and development in India and therefore view it as a critical market to prioritise. As per a report by 
CRISIL Research, the consumer durables industry was valued at Rs. 2.4 Trillion in 2021. Out of this, mobile 
phones & PCs accounted for the largest share, to the tune of Rs. 1.5 Trillion, whereas large household 
appliances and other small appliances comprising the rest of the share. This indicates that India is a 
promising destination for short-term to medium-term expansion of consumer electronics expenditure 
worldwide. Consumer electronics market in India has attracted several significant investments in the form of 
FDI inflows and merger & acquisition by major players in the international market. The approval of the 
‘Electronic Development Fund Policy’ under the ‘Make in India’ initiative aims to streamline a convoluted 
duty structure. Alongside this, the ‘Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme (M-SIPS)’ has been 
implemented to offer a subsidy of approximately 15% to 20% for CAPEX. This will encourage increased 
investment by consumer electronics manufacturers in production, distribution and research & development 
activities in the coming years. Furthermore, ‘Scheme for Promotion of Manufacturing of Electronic 
Components and Semiconductors (SPECS 2022)’, initiated by the Government of India, aims to strengthen 
the manufacturing ecosystem for electronic components and semiconductors in the country. 
 

 
 
Major Growth Drivers 
 
Rising Disposable Income 
With the growing middle-class and rising disposable incomes, consumers are willing to spend more on 
electronic goods, including smartphones, laptops and home appliances. 
 
Increasing Penetration of the Internet 
The increasing penetration of the internet in India has led to a surge in online shopping, making it easier for 
consumers to purchase electronic goods from the comfort of their homes. 
 
Government Policies 
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The Indian Government has implemented various policies to promote electronics manufacturing and 
increase foreign investment in the sector, which has led to a surge in demand for electronic goods in the 
country. 
 
Technological Advancements 
Rapid advancements in technology have led to the launch of new and innovative electronic products, such 
as smart home devices, wearables and virtual reality headsets, which have contributed to the growth of the 
electronics retail industry. 
 
Urbanisation 
The increasing urbanisation of India has led to a rise in demand for electronic goods as consumers in urban 
areas tend to have higher disposable incomes and a greater willingness to adopt new technologies. 
 
Competitive Pricing 
With the growing middle-class and rising disposable incomes, consumers are willing to spend more on 
electronic goods, including smartphones, laptops and home appliances. 
 
Growing E-Commerce Industry 
The growth of the e-commerce industry in India has led to a surge in demand for electronic goods as 
consumers can purchase them easily through online platforms. 
 
Segment-Wise or Product-Wise Performance 
Over the last few years, as a growth oriented company we have focused on diversifying into other consumer 
electronics products as we see a long run way for growth in sales of these products. This has helped us to 
only emerge as a multi-product brand but has also grow our profitability margins. 
 
With an ambitious growth spree, the company has increased the number of multi product stores to 46 in 
2023. This means that now 46 stores under our name sell electronic appliances such as Television, 
Refrigerator, Air Conditioners, Air Coolers, Washing Machines, and Microwaves, though our prime business 
still remains retail and wholesale distribution of mobile handsets, tablets, data cards and mobile accessories. 
Besides this, the conversion rate is at a whopping 98%. 
 

Segment/ Product Number of Stores 

Total Stores 172 

Owned Retail Stores 163 

Franchised Stores 9 

 
The total revenue of the company stood at INR 34474.43 Lac which was INR 25175.69 Lac in previous year. 
The company now owns a total of 172 store, out of which 163 are owned stores and 9 are franchised. 
 
Outlook 
Our Company over the last year has heavily invested time and efforts in diversifying the products sold 
through our stores and the result is that we have increased the total number of Multi Product stores. The 
stores of our company has been spread over the Gujarat covering almost every area even the rural and the 
remote areas. Also, the company has set its footing in Maharashtra this year. Our decision to invest in this 
growth spree roots from the fact that we are bullish on the demand of various consumer electronic items as 
the work from home culture spreads.  
 
Risks and Concerns 
 

• Supply chain disruptions, mobilizing workforce and keeping up with demand poses a risk, as we expect a 
dramatic increase in demand when various companies release their 5G phones in India. 
 

• Many phone manufacturers offering lucrative offers and early-access deals directly to the consumer through 
its B2C channels can become difficult to compete with. 
 

• Rapidly increasing in the technology trends, less life line of the products, outdated ratio increases rapidly. 
 

• The continued maintenance and improvement of BHATIA’s brand recognition and reputation are crucial to 
its future success. Failure to do so may impede the ability to maintain and expand its consumer base, leading 
to negative impacts on business operations, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations. 
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Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy 
 
The Company has in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its size and nature of 
its business. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that all transactions are authorized, 
recorded and reported correctly and the business operations are conducted as per the described policies and 
procedures of the Company. The Audit Committee and the Management have reviewed the adequacy of the 
internal control systems and suitable steps are taken to improve the same 
 
Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance 
 
In FY2023, the company’s revenue from operations grew to INR 34,474 Lac, an increase of 37% from FY 2022. 
 
The company managed to maintain its strong profitability due to a strong foundation and loyal consumer 
base. The company with better inventory management, diversified product portfolio, improving conversion 
rate and new multi-product outlets, realized economies of scale i.e., the company was able to increase its 
sales without much increase in input costs.  
 

 
 
Details of Significant Changes in Key Financial Ratios 
 
NET PROFIT MARGIN AND OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN 
 
The company has been able to maintain a positive net profit margin and operating profit margin with an 
increasing trend. 
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DEBT EQUITY RATIO 

 
 
 
 Debtor's Turnover Ratio is an accounting measure used to measure how effective a company is in extending 
credit as well as collecting debts. The company’s collection of account receivables has been efficient over the 
years, as it caters to the B2C segment.  
 
Inventory’s turnover Ratio indicates the rate at which a company sells and replaces its stock of goods during 
a particular period. The company’s higher Inventory Turnover ratio indicates the company’s efficiency to 
convert its inventory quickly into Sales. 
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CURRENT RATIO 
The Company over the past years has been able to maintain a healthy Current Ratio, because of Better 
Inventory Management System in place. 
 

 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure - VI 

 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023 

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  
The Members,  
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED     
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat 395002 
 
I/we have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited, 
(hereinafter called the “company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon. 
 
Based on my/our verification on test check basis of the M/s. Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) 
Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
M/s. Bhatia Communications& Retail (India) Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;  

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;  

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;  

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable during the year: - 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2022-23 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations,2021; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2022-23 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2022-23 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) (Amendment) Regulations, 

2016; the regulation is not applicable during the Financial Year 2022-23 and  

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018:the regulation 

is not applicable during the Financial Year 2022-23 
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vi. Other Laws Specifically Applicable to Company: 
a. Income Tax Act, 1961 
b. Goods & Service Tax and other Indirect Taxes 
c. Labour Laws  

 
Ihave also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards with regard to the Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-

2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited Stock Exchange of India and 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 
During the year under review, the company has generally complied with the provisions of the act, rules, 
regulations and guidelines mentioned above except the Following: 

• Mrs. Rashmi Kapil Arora, Independent Director of the Company had traded in shares of the 
Company when trading window was closed in violation of the Code of Internal Procedures and 
Conduct for regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders. 

• Mr. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia, Managing Director of the Company had traded in shares of the 
Company when trading window was closed in violation of the Code of Internal Procedures and 
Conduct for regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders. 
 

I further report that, based on the information provided by the company, its officers and authorised 
representative during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of reports by CS/CFO and Statutory 
Auditor of the company, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws. 
 
I further report, that the compliance by the company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax 
laws, Pollution control, CRZ laws and Labour laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have 
been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals. 
 
I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting.  
 
As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the chairman, the decisions of the board 
were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 
 
I/we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.  
 
I report further that, during the audit period, there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the 
aforesaid laws, rules, regulations, etc. having a major bearing on the company’s affairs. 
 
 Signature:  
Date:   17.08.2023 Name of PCS: Ranjit Binod Kejriwal 
Place: Surat FCS No.: 6116 
 C P No.: 5985 
 UDIN: F006116E000816244  
 PR: 12004GJ424500 
 

This report is to be read with our letter dated 17th August, 2023 which is annexed and forms an integral 

part of this report. 
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To,  
The Members,  
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED     
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre,  
Ring Road, Surat 395002 
 

Our Secretarial Audit report dated 17th August, 2023 is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were considered appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 

processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 

test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 Signature:  
Date:  17.08.2023 Name of PCS: Ranjit Binod Kejriwal 
Place: Surat FCS No.: 6116 
 C P No.: 5985 
 UDIN:F006116E000816244  
 PR: 12004GJ424500 
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Annexure - VII 

 
The Disclosures pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 
Read with Rule 5 Of The Companies (Appointment And Remuneration Of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 

2016 Are As Under: 
 
The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary 
during the financial year 2022-2023, ratio of the remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
financial year 2022-23 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against 
the performance of the Company are as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director/ KMP and 
Designation 

Remuneration of 
Director/KMP for 
F.Y. 2022-2023 
(Amount in Rs.) 

% increase in 
Remuneration in 
the F.Y. 2022-2023 

Ratio of 
Remuneration 
of each 
Director/to 
median 
remuneration of 
employees 

1. Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 
Executive Chairman cum  
Managing Director 

24,00,000 NIL 7.40:1 

2. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 
Whole-time Director 

24,00,000 NIL 7.40:1 

3. Kamleshkumari Harbanslal 
Bhatia 
Non-Executive Director 

NIL NIL NIL 

4. Rashmi Kapil Arora 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

NIL NIL NIL 

5. Arpit Arunkumar Jain 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

NIL NIL NIL 

6. Rachit Naresh Narang 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

NIL NIL N.A. 

7. Ravindra Arunrao Sojal 
Chief Financial Officer 

544000 11.48% N.A. 

8. Sachin Agrawal 
Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer 

108050  
 
 

N.A. N.A. 

 
 
(i) Names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn from the Company in the financial year 

2022-2023: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name & 
Designation 

Qualificat
ion and 
Experienc
e 

Remunerati
on on 
(Amount in 
Rs.)Per 
month 

Date of 
Appointme
nt 

Age 
(In 
Years) 

Particula
rs of Last 
Employ
ment 

Relative 
of 
Director/ 
Manager 

Percent
age of 
Equity 
Shares 

1. Sanjeev Bhatia 
Managing 
Director 

B.com 
23 
years 

200000 25-Mar-08 44 NA Brother of 
Nikhil 
Bhatia 
and Son 
of 
Kamleshk
umari 
Bhatia 

34.06 

2. Nikhil Bhatia 
Whole Time 
Director 

H.S.C 
13 
years 

200000 01-Apr-08 41 NA Brother 
of 
Sanjeev 
Bhatia 
and Son 

38.62 
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of 
Kamlesh
kumari 
Bhatia 

3. Rohit Madatali 
Samnani 

B COM 
9 Years 

100000 04-Jun-14 42 HP 
TELECO
M INDIA 
PVT LTD 

NO NIL 

4. Shivangi Samnani B COM 
6 Years 

100000 01-Jul-17 36 HDFC 
BANK 
LTD. 

NO NIL 

5. Gaurav P Rajguru B COM 
9 Years 

45000 01-Oct-14 35 IDEA 
CELLUL
AR 

NO NIL 

6. Pathan 
Sarfarazkhan 
Liyakatali 

HSC 
13 Years 

45000 01-Dec-10 37 BHATIA 
MOBILE 

NO NIL 

7. Prakash Marathe TYBA 
11 Years 

38000 30-Mar-12 43 SUCHIT
RA 
MILLS 

NO NIL 

8. Dagadu C. Patil SYBA 
3 Years 

38000 08-Mar-20 45 MOHIT 
ENTERP
RISE 

NO NIL 

9. Jitesh Kishorbhai 
Jariwala 

HSC 
13 Years 

35000 01-Dec-10 35 BHATIA 
MOBILE 

NO NIL 

10. Vinod Ratilal 
Panpatil 

HSC 
13 Years 

28500 01-Dec-10 42 BHATIA 
MOBILE 

NO NIL 

 
i. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial Year was Rs. 27,000/- 
ii. In the Financial year, there the median remuneration of employees has decreased by 5.26% as compared 

to previous year. 
iii. There were 92 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31,2023;  
iv. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 

comparison of the last financial year is 6.81%. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of the 
managerial personnel in comparison of the last financial year is 34.86%.  

v. The remuneration of KMP is as per the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.  
vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other Employees.  
 
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure - VIII 

STATEMENT OF RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

All businesses are fraught with risk and the consumer electronics business is not different. Our company and 
management seeks to minimize the adverse impacts of all kinds of risks, thus enabling the company to 
leverage market opportunities effectively and enhance long term competitive advantage. The Company has 
adopted a robust risk management policy, to identify, evaluate and mitigate business risks and protect 
stakeholder interests. The Company’s Risk Management framework focuses on timely identification of risks 
and initiates mitigation strategies to steadily tide through crisis including sustainability, information security 
and so on.  

 
The following are the risks associated with our Company and have been identified by the management of 
the company. 
 

Risk Impact Mitigation 

Operational Risk The Company faces Operational 
Risk arises out of inefficiencies or 
negligence in the operations or 
system of internal controls. These 
are risk associated with non-
compliance with statutory 
requirements or policies, not 
following the safety regulations, 
engaging in unlawful or fraudulent 
behavior or breaches of contractual 
agreement 

As a company we have checks and 
balances in places ensure such 
things don’t happen. Internal and 
audits on regular interval put the 
relevant checks in place. 
 

Competition Risk The Company faces competition 
from a diverse range of players, 
including those operating in the 
retail, wholesale and e-commerce 
sectors. The Company competes 
against a range of national and local 
large format stores, independent 
retail stores as well as e-commerce 
businesses that offer similar 
merchandise. 

To mitigate this risk, the Company 
focusses on putting in efforts to 
build relations with reputed brands 
and propositions that will provide 
access to high-value products and 
create a connect between its 
customers and its brand identity 

Reputational Risk The continued maintenance and 
improvement of BHATIA’s brand 
recognition and reputation are 
crucial to its future success. Failure 
to do so may impede the ability to 
maintain and expand its consumer 
base, leading to negative impacts on 
business operations, financial 
condition, cash flows, and results of 
operations. 

To mitigate this risk, the Company 
leverages its strong corporate 
culture and is involved in 
continuous monitoring and 
improving the processes in vogue. 

Supply Chain Risk In the event of a delay or failure on 
the part of company suppliers to 
deliver products in a timely manner 
or any decline in the quality of 
products supplied, its business, 
profitability, and reputation may be 
materially and adversely affected. 

To mitigate this risk, the Company 
focusses on implementing systems 
and processes to provide stability 
into supply chain, including 
inventory levels, lead times, and 
delivery schedules. It also avoids 
relying on a single supplier or 
region and diversifies its supplier 
base to minimise the impact of 
supply chain disruptions. 

 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 

 Managing Director    
 DIN: 02063671 

Sd/- 
Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02063706 
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Annexure – IX 

 
Certificate in terms of Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 

To 
The Board of Directors 
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 

1. In accordance with Regulation 17(8) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we certify that: 
 
I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief: 
  

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023 which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of 
conduct. 
 

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that I 
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting. I have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal 
controls. 
 

4. I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 
a. that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2023; 
b. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the financial year ended March 31, 2023; 

and 
c. There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware, involving 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system. 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Ravindra Arunrao Sojal 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Annexure – X 

 
DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR THAT THE MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL HAVE AFFIRMED WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 
All the Members of the Board of Directors of the Company and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 as applicable to them as 
laid down in Companies Act, 2013 with the code of conduct of Board members and senior management 
personnel.  
 
 
 
Date: 17/08/2023      
Place: Surat                                                               

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bhatia Communications & Retail (India) Limited 

 Sd/- 
Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia   

Managing Director                       
DIN: 02063671    
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Annexure – XI 
 

RPR & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  
 
9001, World Trade Center, Near Udhna Darwaja, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
Email-id: rpr@rprandco.com,  Tel: 261-3591630 

 
AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
To 
The Members of  
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED.  
 
We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Bhatia Communications 
& Retail (India) Limited (The Company); for the year ended 31st March 2023 as stipulated in Regulation 
27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 of the said Company with 
BSE Limited.  
 
The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of an opinion on the financial statement of the Company.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (Listing Obligations And 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015. 
 
We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as 
per the records maintained by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  
 
For RPR & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

   
Sd/- 

 RaunaqKankaria 

Partner 

UDIN: 23138361BGXJBC1876 

M. No. 138361 
FRN No. 131964W 
 

Place: Surat  
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Annexure – XII 
 

 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To,  
The Members,  
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 
(CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336) 
132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, 
Ring Road, Surat - 395002 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED having CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 and 
having registered office at 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat - 395002 (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

S. No. Name of Director DIN 
Date of appointment 

in Company 

1.  Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia 02063671 25/03/2008 

2.  Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia 02063706 01/04/2008 

3.  Kamleshkumari Harbanslal Bhatia 02066517 30/03/2020 

4.  Rashmi Kapil Arora 07584412 05/01/2018 

5.  Arpit Arunkumar Jain 08044841 05/01/2018 

6.  Rachit Naresh Narang 08044845 05/01/2018 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  
 
Date: 17/08/2023      Sd/- 
Place: Surat                                                                             Name of PCS: Ranjit Binod Kejriwal 
 FCS No. : 6116 
 C P No. :5985 
 UDIN:F006116E000816266 
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RPR & Co. 
Chartered Accountants  

9001, World Trade Center, Near Udhna Darwaja, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
Email-id: rpr@rprandco.com, Tel: 261-3591630 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMTED 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements: 

Opinion: 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of BHATIA 
COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMTED (“The Company”) which comprises the Balance 
Sheet as on 31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow statement for the year then ended 
and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2023 and its profit 
and total comprehensive income and change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.  

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the entity in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below 
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Branches and Franchise 

The company has many franchises and branches and the company receives advances/security 
deposit from its various franchises and the same is adjusted against the amount due from them 
as on the balance sheet date. The company also receives deposit from branch partner towards 
security deposit against stock provided to them and same is shown in balance sheet as long 
term liability. 

Auditor’s Response 

We get the complete list of franchise and branches from the management and check that there 
is no deviation in the security deposit received and stock provided to them. We also check the 
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agreement made with the branch partner and check whether proper disclosure is made 
regarding advances received from branch partner and term and conditions of the agreement. 

 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements:  
                                                         
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘‘the Act’’) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error; to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and to 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the auditor’s 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act,2013, we are responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economics decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user 
of the financial statement may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factor in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the result of our work and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.   
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report), Order, 2016 (order dated 29.03.2016), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘order’), and on the basis of test check as we considered appropriate 
and according to information and explanation provided to us, we enclose in the Annexure “A” 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order. 

 
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

2.1 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit  

2.2 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company as 
far as appears from our examination of those books. 

2.3 The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss statement (Including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Change in Equity dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

2.4 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

2.5 On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2023, 
taken on record by the Board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director under section 164(2) of the Act 

2.6 With respect to the adequacy of financial controls over financial reporting of the company and 
the operative effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. 

2.7 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act; and 

2.8 With respect to the others matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the companies (audit and auditors) rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us.                 

(i) There were no pending litigations which would impact the financial position of the 
company.  

(ii) The company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts 
including derivative contracts. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection fund by the company. 

(iv) (i) As per management’s representation, no funds other than disclosed by way of notes 
to accounts have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 
person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
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by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

(ii) As per management’s representation, There were no funds which have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and  

(iii) The representation received from the company under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above 
does not contain any material mis-statement. 

(v)The company has declared or paid dividend in compliance with section 123 of the 
companies Act 2013. 

(vi) As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable to the 
Companies only with effect from April 1, 2023, reporting under this sub-clause is not 
applicable. 

 

For RPR & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 131964W 

 
Date :29.05.2023                                      
Place: Surat          

 
           Sd/- 

                                                                                                                   Raunaq Kankaria 
                                                                                                                   Partner   
                                                                                                                   Mem No. 138361 
                                                                                                                  UDIN:23138361BGXIZW6517 
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1 Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets

(a) Whether the company is maintaining proper records showing

full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of

property, plant, equipment and intangible assets.

YES

(b) Whether these fixed assets have been physically verified by

the management at reasonable intervals; whether any material

discrepancies were noticed on such verification and if so,

whether the same have been properly dealt with in the books

of account;

The management conducted physical verification of

certain fixed assets in accordance with its policy of

physical verification in a phased manner. In our opinion,

such frequency is reasonable having regard to the size of

the Company and the nature of its fixed assets. As

explained to us, the discrepancies noticed on physical

verification as compared to book records maintained,

were not material and have been properly dealt with in

the books of account.

(c) Whether title deeds of immovable properties are held in the

name of the company. If not, provide details thereof.

NA

(d) Whether the company has revalued its Property, Plant and

Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets

or both during the year and, if so, whether the revaluation is

based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer.

No

(e) Whether any proceedings have been initiated or are pending

against the company for holding any benami property under

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)

and rules made thereunder.

No

2 Inventories

(a) Whether physical verification of inventory has been conducted

at reasonable intervals by the management and whether any

material discrepancies were noticed and if so, how they have

been dealt with in the books of account;

The management conducted physical verification of

inventory in accordance with its policy of physical

verification in a phased manner. In our opinion, such

frequency is reasonable having regard to the size of the

Company and the nature of its inventory. As explained to

us, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification as

compared to book records maintained, were not material

and have been properly dealt with in the books of

account.
(b) Whether Company has availed Working Capital Loan(s) from

banks or financial institutions by pledging current assets and

the sanction limit(s) by combining limit of all banks or financial

institutions exceed Rs 5 Crore and if so. Whether quarterly

result or statement filed by the company with such banks or

financial institutions are in line with the accounting books.

Yes

3 Loan Granted

Whether the company has made investment in, provide any

guarantee or security or granted any loans, secured or

unsecured to companies, firms, LLPs or any other parties.

Yes

(a) Whether the investment made, guarantees provided, security

given and terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are

not prejudicial to the company’s interest; 

As per explanation provided to us, YES

(b) Whether receipt of the principal amount and interest are

regular. If not provide details thereof; and 

Yes

(c) if amount is overdue then total amount overdue for more than

90 days and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the

company for recovery of the principal and interest;

NA

(d) Whether any loan or advances granted which has fallen due

during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans

granted to settle the overdue of existing loan given to the same

party, If so, specify the aggregate amount of such dues

renewed or extended or settled by fresh loan and the

percentage of the aggregate to the total loans or advances in

the nature of loan granted during the year.

No

(e) whether the company has granted any loans or advances in

the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without

specifying any terms or period of repayment, if so, specify the

aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total loans

granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to promoters,

related parties as defined in clause (76) of the section 2 of the

companies Act 2013

No

Annexure "A" to Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in of our report of even date to the members of BHATIA TELECOMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED as 

on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during 

the course of audit, we state that:
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4 Loans, Investments and guarantees

In respect of loans, investments and guarantees, whether

provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

have been complied with. If not, provide details thereof.

As explained to us and from the records verified, the

company has generally complied the provision of section

185 and 186 of The Companies Act, 2013. 

5 Deposit

In case the company has accepted deposits, whether the

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the

provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder,

where applicable, have been complied with? If not, the nature

of such contraventions be stated; If an order has been passed

by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or

Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal,

whether the same has been complied with or not?

NIL

6 Cost Records

Whether maintenance of cost records has been specified by

the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148

of the Companies Act, 2013 and whether such accounts and

records have been so made and maintained;

According to the information and explanations given to

us and the record examined by us, the company

maintains cost record as specified under Companies Act,

2013.

7 Statutory dues

(a) whether the company is regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state

insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, , service tax, duty of

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, and any other

statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and if not, the

extent of the arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last 

day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than

six months from the date they became payable, shall be

indicated by the auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to

us and the record examined by us, the company is

generally regular in depositing with appropriate

authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident

Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income–tax, Sales-

tax and other material Statutory Dues applicable to it.

There were no arrears as at, 31st March, 2023 for a

period of more than six months from the date they

became payable except TDS default of Rs 4,457 of past

years.

(b) Where dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of

customs or duty of excise or value added tax have not been

deposited on account of any dispute, then the amounts

involved and the forum where dispute is pending shall be

mentioned. (A mere representation to the concerned

Department shall not be treated as a dispute).

NIL

Particulars F.Y. AMOUNT (In Rs.) STATUS

8
Income Disclosed in Tax Assessment but not properly

accounted in Books of Accounts.

Whether any transactions not recorded in books of account

have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, if so,

whether the previously unrecorded income has been properly

recorded by the company in the books of accounts during the

year.

NA

9 Default in Repayment

(a) Whether the company has defaulted in repayment of dues to a

financial institution or bank or debenture holders? If yes, the

period and amount of default to be reported (in case of banks

and financial institutions, lender wise details to be provided).

NO

(b) Whether the company has been disclosed wilful defaulter by

any financial institution (including Banks)

NO

(c) Whether term loan were applied for the purpose for which the

loans were obtained, if not, the amount of loan so diverted and

the purpose for which it is used.

Yes

(d) Whether fund raised on short term basis have been utilised for

long term purpose, if yes, the nature and amount to be

indicated

NO

(e) Whether the company has taken any fund from any entity or

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, if so, details thereof

with nature of such transaction and the amount in each case.

NA

(f) Whether the company has raised loans during the year on the

pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies, if so, provide details thereof and also

report if the company has defaulted in repayment of such loan

raised.

NA
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10 Money raised

(a) Whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further

public offer (including debt instrument) were applied for the

purposes for which those are raised. If not, the details together

with delays / default and subsequent rectification, if any, as

may be applicable, be reported;

No

(b) Whether the company has made any preferential allotment /

private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible

debentures during the year under review and if so, as to

whether the requirement of Section 42 and section 62 of the

Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the fund

raised have been used for the purpose for which the fund were

raised, if not , the details in respect of amount involved and

nature of non compliances.

No

11 Fraud

(a) Whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the

Company by its officers/ employees has been noticed or

reported during the year; If yes, the nature and the amount

involved be indicated.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the

information and explanations given to us, there have

been no cases of fraud on or by the Company noticed or

reported during the year under report

(b) whether any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the

Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4

as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

No

(c) whether the auditor has considered whistle-blower complaints,

if any, received during the year by the company

NA

12 Nidhi Company

Whether the Nidhi Company has complied with the Net Owned

Fund in the ratio of 1:20 to meet out the liability and whether

the Nidhi Company is maintaining 10% liquid assets to meet

out the unencumbered liability.

NA

13 Related Parties Transactions

Whether all transactions with the related parties are in

compliance with Section 188 and 177 of Companies Act, 2013

where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the

Financial Statements etc as required by the accounting

standards and Companies Act, 2013.

As per the information and explanation provided to us

and records produced before us, the company has

generally complied with the provisions.

14 Internal Audit

Whether the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business, if Yes,

whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under

audit were considered.

Yes

15 Non-cash Transactions

Whether the company has entered into any non-cash

transactions with directors or persons connected with him and

if so, whether provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act,

2013 have been complied with.

NA

16 Registration with RBI

(a) Whether the company is required to be registered under

section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and if so,

whether the registration is obtained.

NA

(b) Whether the company has conducted Non-Banking or Housing

Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration

(CoR) from RBI as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

NA

(c) Whethe the company is Core Investment Company (CIC) as

defined in the regulations made by the RBI, if so, whether it

continue to fulfill the criteria of a CIC, and in case the company

is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to

fulfill such criteria.

NA

17 Cash Losses

Whether the company has incurred cash losses in the financial

year and in the immediately preceding financial year if so the

amount of cash losses.

No

18 Resignation of Previous Statutory Auditor

Whether there has been any resignation of the Statutory

Auditor during the year, if so, whether consideration has been

taken for the issues, objections or concerns raised by the

outgoing auditors.

NA
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19 Material Uncertainty

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates

of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial

statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors

and management plans, whether the auditor is of the opinion

that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit

report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a

period of one year from the balance sheet date;

Yes

20 Corporate Social Responsibility

(a) whether, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the

company has transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified

in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six

months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with

second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said

Act;

NO

(b) whether any amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5)

of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing

project, has been transferred to special account in compliance

with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said

Act;

NO

21 Qualification or Adverse Remark for CFS Companies

Whether there have been any qualification or adverse remark

by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)

order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the

Consolidated Financial Statement, if yes the details of the

companies and the paragraph number of the CARO report

containing the qualifications or adverse remark.

NA

For RPR & CO

Chartered Accountants

Raunaq Kankaria

Partner

M No: 138361

FRN: 131964W

Date : 29.05.2023

Place: SURAT

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & 

RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED (“The Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
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timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion  

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For RPR& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 131964W 

 
Date :29.05.2023     
Place: Surat        

 
             Sd/- 

                                            Raunaq Kantaria 
        Partner  
        Mem No.138361 
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2023
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs

As at As at

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

a Property, plant and equipment 2 778.27 721.69 

b Capital work-in-progress - - 

c Invetsment Property

d Goodwill 2 29.00 29.00 

e Other Intangible Assets - - 

f Intangible assets under development - - 

g Biological Assets other than bearer plants - - 

h Financial Assets

(i) Investments - - 

(ii) Trade Receivable - - 

(iii) Loans 3 323.96 300.41 

(iii) Other Financial Assets 3 1,632.43 1,815.21 

i Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2.68 - 

j Other Non Current Assets - - 

Total Non-Current assets 2,766.34 2,866.30 

Current Assets

a Inventories 4 4,501.46 4,093.55 

b Financial Assets

(i) Investments - - 

(ii) Trade Receivables 5 548.17 537.68 

(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 1,091.83 183.29 

(iv) Bank Balance other than (iii) above - - 

(v) Loans 7 585.26 563.07 

(vi)Others - - 

c Current Tax Assets (Net) - - 

d Other Current Assets - - 

Total Current assets 6,726.73 5,377.59 

Total Assets 9,493.07 8,243.88 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(i) Equity Share capital 8 1,251.52 1,251.52 

(ii) Other Equity 9 4,204.40 3,370.06 

Total Equity 5,455.92 4,621.58 

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

a Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 10 55.46 163.81 

(ia) Lease Liability - - 

(ii) Trade Payables - - 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities - - 

b Provisions 11 42.26 37.43 

c Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - 7.27 

d Other non-Current Liabilities 12 828.71 623.89 

Total non-current liabilities 926.42 832.41 

(2)

Particulars
Note 

No.

(1)

(2)

(1)
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Current liabilities

a Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 1,838.52 1,359.70 

(ia) Lease Liability - - 

(ii) Trade payables 14

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 0.63 0.49 

b Other Current liabilities - - 

c Provisions 16 295.85 189.95 

d Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total current liabilities 3,110.73 2,789.90 

Total Equity and Liabilities 9,493.07 8,243.88 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For RPR & CO

Chartered Accountants

Raunaq Kankaria

Partner

M No: 138361

FRN: 131964W

Date : 29.05.2023

Place: SURAT

The accompanying notes including other explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.

(3)

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises; and
-  -  

(B) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro and small enterprises
975.72 1,239.76  

Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjeev Bhatia 

Managing Director 
DIN: 02063671

Company Secretary

Nikhil Bhatia 
Whole Time Director 

DIN:02063706

C.F.O.

Sd/-

Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal
Sd/- Sd/-

Ravindra Arunrao Sojal
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336
132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDING ON 31.03.2023
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs

Note 

No.
 31st March, 2023  31st March, 2022 

I Revenue From Operations 17 31,348.18 23,347.17
II Other income 18 3,126.25 1,828.53
III TOTAL INCOME 34,474.43 25,175.69

IV Expenditures
Cost of Materials Consumed - -
Purchase of Stock In trade 31,818.22 24,099.83

19
(407.92) (1,196.60)

Employee benefit expenses 20 423.86 373.27
Financial costs 21 227.27 131.98
Depreciation & Amortization 2 121.59 115.31
Other Expenses 22 1,159.86 944.27

V TOTAL EXPENSES 33,342.89 24,468.05

VI Profit before Exceptional items & tax 1,131.54 707.64

Add /Less : Exceptional Items - -

VII Profit Before Tax 1,131.54 707.64

Tax expense :-
Current Tax 292.18 186.85 
Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Deferred Tax -9.95 -6.47

Earlier Year Taxes 0.67 -
Less: MAT credit entitlement - -

VIII Profit /(Loss) from Continuing Operations 848.63 527.26 
IX Profit /(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations - -

Less: Tax Expenses of Discontinuing Operations - -
X Profit /(Loss) from Discontinuing Operations after Tax - -
XI Profit / (Loss) for the year 848.63 527.26 

Other Comprehensive Income

A  2.94 3.98

(0.74) (1.00)

B  - -

- -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2.20 2.98
Total comprehensive income for the year 850.83 530.24

XIII Earning per Equity Share
Basic 0.678 0.421
Diluted 0.678 0.421

See accompanying notes to the financial statement

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For RPR & CO
Chartered Accountants

Raunaq Kankaria Sanjeev Bhatia Nikhil Bhatia
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
M No: 138361 DIN: 02063671 DIN:02063706
FRN: 131964W

Date : 29.05.2023
Place: SURAT Company Secretary C.F.O.

PARTICLULARS

Changes in inventory of finished goods, work-in-progress and 

Stock-in-Trade

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & loss 

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

profit & loss

(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit & loss

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified  to profit

&loss

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal
Sd/-             Sd/-

Ravindra Arunrao Sojal
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2023 Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary Items 1,131.54 707.64 

Adjustments for:

111.65 108.84 

Financial Costs 227.27 131.98 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,470.45 948.46 

Adjustments for Working Capital Changes:

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (407.92) (1,196.60) 

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivable (10.49) (45.54) 

Decrease/(Increase) in Provision (Non Current) 4.83  3.96 

Decrease/(Increase) in Provision (Current) 105.90 45.18 

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Payable (264.03) 307.38 

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Liability 204.81 43.89 

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Liability(Financial) 0.14  0.05 

Cash generated from Operations 1,103.69 106.79 

Income Tax Paid (283.64) (181.38) 

Adjustments to OCI 2.94  3.98 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 822.99 (70.61) 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase/Sale of Fixed Assets (178.18) (197.49) 

Loans & Advances 137.03 5.89 

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (41.16) (191.60) 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance Costs (227.27) (131.98) 

Increase in Share Capital -  - 

Increase in Reserves & Surplus -  - 

Dividend Paid (16.49) (16.50) 

Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Borrowings (Long-Term) (108.36) 24.02 

Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Borrowings (Short-Term) 478.82 407.51 

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 126.71 283.05 

Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 908.54 20.84 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 183.29 162.44 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,091.83 183.29 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For RPR & CO

Chartered Accountants

Raunaq Kankaria Nikhil Bhatia

Partner Whole Time Director

M No: 138361 DIN:02063706

FRN: 131964W

Date : 29.05.2023

Place: SURAT C.F.O.

Depreciation

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sanjeev Bhatia 

Managing Director 
DIN: 02063671

Company Secretary

Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal
Sd/-

Ravindra Arunrao Sojal
Sd/-
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NOTE 2

a. Property, plant and equipment

Amount in Lacs

PARTICULARS
COMPUTER AND 

DATA PROCESSING 

UNIT

ELECTRICAL 

INSTALLATION AND 

EQUIPMENTS

FURNITURE & 

FIXTURE

OFFICE 

EQUIPMENTS  (P&M)
VEHICLES TOTAL

Year ended March 31, 2022

Opening Gross Carrying Amount

Deemed Cost as at March 31, 2022

108.76 101.21 714.00 138.41 246.38 1,308.75 

Additions 19.84 23.84 42.88 8.38 83.25 178.18 

Disposals - - - - - - 
Capitalised /Transferred during the yea - - - - - - 

Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31.03.2023 128.60 125.05 756.87 146.79 329.62 1,486.94 
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Accumulated Depreciation as on 31.03.202 90.87 35.58 310.14 46.98 103.49 587.07 

Depreciation Charge during the yea 9.84 9.70 63.28 9.20 29.57 121.59 

Disposals - - - - - - 

Closing Accumulated Depreciation as on 31.03.202 100.71 45.28 373.43 56.18 133.06 708.66 

Net Carrying Amount As On  31.03.2023 27.88 79.77 383.45 90.61 196.56 778.27 

b. Goodwill

Amount in Lacs

Particulars GOODWILL
Year ended March 31, 2022

Opening Gross Carrying Amount

Deemed Cost as at March 31, 2022

29.00 

Additions - 

Disposals - 

Capitalised /Transferred during the yea - 

Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31.03.2023 29.00 
Accumulated Depreciation

Opening Accumulated Depreciation - 

Depreciation Charge during the yea - 

Disposals - 

Closing Accumulated Depreciation - 

Net Carrying Amount As On  31.03.2023 29.00 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs

PARTICULARS  As at 31.03.2023  As at 31.03.2022 

323.96 300.41 
323.96 300.41 

1,507.66 1,724.38 
5.26 5.00 

119.51 85.82 
1,632.43 1,815.21 

4,501.46 4,093.55 
4,501.46 4,093.55 

548.17 537.68 
548.17 537.68 

NOTE 3

FINANCIAL ASSETS

LOANS

Others- Unsecured  Considered Good 
LOANS AND ADVANCES

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
F.D with HDFC Bank (Marked for Lien) 
F.D with SBI Bank (Marked for Lien) 
SHOP DEPOSIT

NOTE 4
INVENTORIES 

TRADED GOODS

NOTE  5
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Sundry Debtors

Trade Receivables ageing schedule
Amount in Lacs

357.58          61.38    -4.35 13.39              120.18 548.17 

258.70 118.28 
0.63 0.49 

832.49 64.51 
1,091.83 183.29 

NOTE  6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS          
CASH ON HAND
HDFC-DIVIDEND A/C- UNPAID DIVIDEND 
BALANCES WITH SCHEDULE BANK

NOTE 7
LOANS- CURRENT

OTHERS:
    OTHERS, CONSIDERED GOOD: 585.26 563.07 

585.26 563.07 

- 
TOTAL

Disputed Trade 

Receivables- Considered 

Doubtful - -       - - - 

- 

Undisputed Trade 

Receivables- Considered 

Doubtful - -       - - - - 

Disputed Trade 

Receivables- Considered 

Good - -       - - - 

Total

Undisputed Trade 

Receivables- Considered 

Good 357.58          61.38    -4.35 13.39 120.18 548.17 

Particulars
Outstanding for following period from Due Date of Payment

Less Than 6 

Month

6 Mohts-

1 Years
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Years
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NOTE 8
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
13,00,00,000 Equity shares of Re 1/- each 1,300.00 1,300.00 
P.Y. 13,00,00,000 Equity shares of Re 1/- each

1,300.00 1,300.00 

ISSUED SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
12,51,52,000  Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1,251.52 1,251.52 
P.Y.12,51,52,000  Equity Shares of Re.1/- each

1,251.52 1,251.52 

SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL
12,51,52,000  Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1,251.52 1,251.52 
P.Y. 12,51,52,000  Equity Shares of Re.1/- each

1,251.52 1,251.52 

SUBSCRIBED BUT NOT FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL - - 
- - 

Reconciliation of Shares

Number Amount in Lacs Number Amount in Lacs
12,51,52,000  1,251.52        12,51,52,000 1,251.52 

Equity share issured during the yea - - - - 
Bonus Shares issued during the yea - - - - 

- - - - 
- - - - 

Shares outstanding at end of the year 12,51,52,000  1,251.52        12,51,52,000 1,251.52 

Shareholder(s) holding more than 5% shares

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
held held

Sanjeev H Bhatia 4,26,00,000     34.04% 4,26,00,000 34.04%
Nikhil Bhatia 4,83,28,540     38.62% 4,83,28,540 38.62%

12,51,52,000   12,51,52,000            
Shareholdings of Promoters / Promoters Group

S. No. No. of shares % of holding
Promoters

1 Nikhil Bhatia 4,83,28,540     38.62%
2 Sanjeev H Bhatia 4,26,00,000     34.04%

Promoters Group
1 Hema Sanjeev Bhatia 12,22,660 0.98%
2 Garima Nikhil Bhatia 280 0.00%
3 Nareshkumar Brijlal Bhatia 260 0.00%
4 Kamleshkumari Bhatia 260 0.00%

9,21,52,000     73.63%

Unpaid calls

By Directors Nil

By Officers

Terms / rights attached to shares:

The Equity shares have a face value of Re 1 per share. Each holder of share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company all

shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the shares held by them.

The Preference shares issued are 5% non cumulative fully convertible preference shares,convertible into one equity share each at the discretion of the Board of

directors. Dividend to be paid will rank in priority to equity shareholders, but the declaration of same vests with Board of directors, irrespective of fact that company

is making profits or not.The Preference share has been converted into equity share as on 30.09.2017

62,57,600 EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 10.10.2018 to the existing equity shareholders of the company.

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

TOTAL 0.00%

Shares allotted for consideration other than cash (for period of five years preceding the B/S date)

30,90,600 EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 30.09.2017 to the existing equity shareholders of the company.

37,500 PREFERENCE SHARES OF Rs 10 each has been converted into 37,500 EQUITY SHARE OF Rs. 10 on 30.09.2017.

12,14,400 EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 05.01.2018 to the existing equity shareholders of the company.

14,00,000 FRESH EQUITY SHARES OF Rs 10 each were issued on 16.02.2018 through BSE-SME IPO.

0.00%

Shares outstanding

Shares outstanding at beginning of the yea

Preference share converted into equity
Share bought back during the yea

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

 Equity shares of Re.1/- each

Share held by Promoters/Promoters Group at the end of Year
 % Change during the Year 

Name

0.00%

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

Equity Shares Equity Shares
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Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs

 As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
1,334.24 1,334.24 

- - 
- - 

1,334.24 1,334.24 

NOTE 9

OTHER EQUITY

SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE 
Opening balance

Add: Credited during the year      
Less: Utilised during the year  
Closing Balance

RETAINED EARNING
Opening balance 2,035.82 1,522.07 

850.83 530.24 
- - 
- - 

(16.49) (16.50) 

     (+)Total comprehensive income      
(+)Transfer from reserves
     (-)Issue of bonus shares
     (-)Dividend paid
     (-)Transfer to reserves - - 
Closing Balance 2,870.16 2,035.82 
Total Other Equity 4,204.40 3,370.06 

NOTE 10
BORROWINGS: NON- CURRENT
UNSECURED LOAN
LOANS FROM DIRECTOR / RELATED PARTY 15.44 140.89 

SECURED LOAN
CAR LOAN FROM HDFC BANK 8.94 22.92 

CAR LOAN FROM HDFC BANK - BMW X4 31.07 - 

55.46 163.81 

NOTE 11
PROVISIONS: NON- CURRENT
PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 42.26 37.43 

42.26 37.43 

NOTE 12
OTHER NON- CURRENT
DEPOSIT
BRANCH PARTNER DEPOSIT 828.71 623.89 

828.71 623.89 

NOTE 13
BORROWINGS- CURRENT
LOAN FROM BANKS:
    SECURED:
     HDFC Bank 1,804.25 1,347.84 
(Bank O.D of Rs 14 Crore and Cash Credit of Rs 10 Crore

Rate of Interest: Bank O/D = 7.73% p.a. and C.C. = 8.96% p.a. as on 31.03.202

CURRENT MATURITIES OF LONG TERM DEBT:
CAR LOAN FROM HDFC BANK 13.98 11.86 
CAR LOAN FROM HDFC BANK - BMW X4  20.29 - 

1,838.52 1,359.70 

(Car Loan from HDFC Bank of Rs 40,40,000 secured by hypothecation of the Car

purchased. The Loan amount is repayable in 39 monthly equal installments of Rs

1,16,491 (including interest) commencing from Oct 2021 to Dec 2024.

(Car Loan from HDFC Bank of Rs 58,00,000 by hypothecation of the car purchased.

The Loan amount is repayable in 39 monthly equal installment of Rs 1,69,112

(including interest) commencing from Nov 2022 to Jan 2026

(Secured against Stock, Debtor, PG, FD, Current Assets - Other FDR as collateral and

Property held in the name of Director and Relative and personal gurantee of Director

and Relative)
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NOTE  14
TRADE PAYABLES
SUNDRY CREDITORS FOR GOODS 885.05 1,098.00 
CREDITORS FOR EXPENSES 76.05 129.23 
CREDITORS FOR OTHERS 14.62 12.52 

975.72 1,239.76 

Trade Payables aging schedule
Amount in Lacs

(i) MSME          -                       -   -                                -   -   
(ii) Others   682.83 24.13 65.52 203.25 975.72 
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME          -                       -   -                                -   -   
(iii) Disputed Dues- Others          -                       -   -                                -   -   

682.83  24.13 65.52              203.25 975.72 

0.44 0.44 
0.05 0.05 
0.14 - 
0.63 0.49 

2.94 2.10 

NOTE 15
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
UNPAID DIVIDEND (2019-20)
UNPAID DIVIDEND (2020-21)
UNPAID DIVIDEND (2021-22)

NOTE 16
PROVISIONS - CURRENT PROVISION 
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT    
PROVISION FOR GRATUITY       
OTHERS

PROVISION FOR TAXATION 292.92 187.85 
295.85 189.95 

More Than 3 Years Total

TOTAL

Particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less 

Than 1 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Amount in Lacs Amount in Lacs

PARTICULARS As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

NOTE  17

REVENUE FROM OPERATION

SALE OF GOODS(Net) 31,348.18 23,347.17 

31,348.18 23,347.17 

NOTE  18

OTHER INCOME

DEBIT NOTE A/C 3,081.85 1,788.74 

CREDIT NOTE (188.12) (149.18) 

COMMISSION INCOME 8.45 10.32 

OTHER INCOME 36.77 5.22 

VATAV KASAR A/C 58.96 72.90 

INTEREST RECEIVED 103.38 100.53 

INSURANCE CLAIM RECEIVED 24.97 - 

3,126.25 1,828.53 

NOTE  19

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN INVENTORY

OPENING STOCK 4,093.55 2,896.94 

LESS: CLOSING STOCK 4,501.46 4,093.55 

(407.92) (1,196.60) 

NOTE  20

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BONUS & INCENTIVES EXPENSES 16.33 19.93 

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 48.00 48.00 

E.P.F.& E.S.I 0.84 0.96 

SALARY EXPENSES 350.09 295.99 

GRATUITY 8.60 8.39 

423.86 373.27 

NOTE  21

FINANCIAL COSTS

 BANK CHARGES A/C 3.16 6.88 

 CARD SWAPING CHARGES 126.18 80.84 

 BANK INTEREST A/C. 82.70 41.59 

 FINANCE CHARGES (0.81) (0.28) 

 INTEREST ON SECURED LOAN 3.94 1.93 

 INTEREST EXPENSES - 0.89 

 LOAN PROCESSING CHARGES 12.10 0.14 

227.27 131.98 
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NOTE  22

OTHER EXPENSES

PAYMENT TO AUDITOR:

    AS AUDITOR 0.35 0.35 

    AS TAX AUDITOR 0.15 0.15 

    RATES & TAXES:

    PROFESSIONAL TAX A/C 0.72 0.64 

    SMC TAXES 12.90 7.70 

    RENT 377.00 368.57 

    REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 26.40 23.95 

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES:

    ADVERTISEMENT EXP. 49.28 25.84 

    COMMISSION EXPENSES 296.53 164.18 

    COMPUTER EXPENSES 5.15 5.74 

    CSR EXPENSE 9.59 10.02 

    DISCOUNT A/C (0.07) 3.56 

    E PORTAL CHARGES - 35.87 

    ELECTRICITY EXPENSES 115.82 88.69 

    FREIGHT CHARGES 0.41 - 

    GST EXPENSE 0.45 0.30 

    GST LATE FEES 0.77 - 

    INCENTIVE TO SALES PERSON 13.55 10.64 

    INTEREST ON TDS/TCS 0.21 0.19 

    INSURANCE EXPENSE 21.84 9.42 

    LEGAL &  CONSULTING EXP 13.64 7.47 

    LOSS ON THEFT OF GOODS 0.43 - 

    MOBILE BILLS EXP. 2.07 2.00 

    PINE LABS PROCESSING CHARGE 5.51 6.94 

    POSTAGE & COURIER EXP. 6.10 6.55 

    PRINTING & STATIONARY A/C 6.05 5.23 

    ROC FEES 0.04 0.05 

    ROUND OFF (0.00) (0.05) 

    SHOP MAINTENANCE 0.10 0.90 

    SHOP EXPENSES 93.68 81.35 

    SECURITY EXP 0.96 0.96 

    TRAVELLING EXPENSES 78.80 59.86 

    VEHICLE EXPENSE 16.31 12.36 

    INTERNET & VPN CONNECTION EXPENSES          5.15 3.20 

    WEBSITES EXPENSES - 1.66 

1,159.86 944.27 
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I. Equity share capital Amount in Lacs
Current Year Previous Year.

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
1,251.52            1,251.52            

- - 
1,251.52            1,251.52            

- - 

Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period error 
Restated Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Changes in equity share capital during the Year
Balance at the end of Year 1,251.52            1,251.52            

II. 

Securities 

premium reserve

Retained

earnings
Balane at the Beginning of the Reporting Period 1,334.24 2,035.82            3,370.06            
Profit for the year - 848.63 848.63 
Other comprehensive income - 2.20 2.20 
Total comprehensive income for the year - 850.83 850.83 
Increase/Decrease in Securities Premium Reserve On issue of

shares - - - 

Any Others Changes to be specified - 

Final Dividend paid - (16.49) (16.49) 

Balance at the end of Reporting Period 1,334.24 2,870.16            4,204.40            

(2) Previous Reporting Period

Securities 

premium reserve
Retained

earnings

Balane at the Beginning of the previous Reporting Period 1,334.24 1,522.07            2,856.31            

Profit for the year - 527.26 527.26 

Other comprehensive income - 2.98 2.98 

Total comprehensive income for the yea - 530.24 530.24 
Increase/Decrease in Securities Premium Reserve On issue of

shares - - - 
Any Others Changes to be specified - 
Any Others Changes to be specified - (16.50) (16.50) 

Balance at the end of Previous Reporting Period 1,334.24 2,035.82            3,370.06            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statement 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nikhil Bhatia 
Whole Time Director

Sanjeev Bhatia 
Managing Director 

DIN: 02063671 DIN:02063706

For RPR & CO 

Chartered Accountants 

Raunaq Kankaria 
Partner
M No: 138361 
FRN: 131964W 
Date : 29.05.2023 
Place: SURAT

Particulars

Reserves and surplus
Total 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Other Equity 

(1) Current Reporting Period

Particulars

Reserves and surplus
Total 

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal
   Company Secretary

 Sd/-
Ravindra Arunrao Sojal

C.F.O
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Amount in Lacs

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES AS ON 31-03-2023

WDV as per Books 778.27 721.69 

WDV as per IT Act 809.20 738.99 

(30.93) (17.31) 

Deferred Tax Liability @ 25.168% (7.78) (4.36) 

(7.78) (4.36) 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AS ON 31-03-2023

- On provision for Gratutity 8.60 8.39 

8.60 8.39 

Provision for Employees Benefit 2.16 2.11 

2.16 2.11 

Net deferred tax liability/(asset) (9.95) (6.47) 

Add: Deferred Tax Asset due to Ind-AS - - 

- - 

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) as on 31-03-2023 (9.95) (6.47) 

Deferred Tax Liability/Asset as on Previous Year (7.27) (13.74) 

Additional Provision for Deferred Tax Assets or Liability 9.95 6.47 

Additional Provision for Deferred Tax Asset due to Ind-AS - - 

Net deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) as on 31.03.2023 2.68 (7.27) 

BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
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Fair value measurements

Amount in Lacs

Financial instruments by category

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets

Trade Receivables - - 548.17 - - 537.68 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 1,091.83 - - 183.29 

Other Financial Assets - - 2,541.66 - - 2,678.68 

Total financial assets - - 4,181.66 - - 3,399.65 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 1,893.98 - - 1,523.51 

Trade Payable - - 975.72 - - 1,239.76 

Other Financial Liabilities - - 0.63 - - 0.49 

Total financial liabilities - - 2,870.33 - - 2,763.76 

Fair value hierarchy

Levels of Hierarchy:

Note: We have identified all our Financial assets and liabilities in  Level-3 as per fair value heirarchy.

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Ind AS -113 contains a fair value hierarchy that is similar to the hierarchy established under Ind AS-107. The highest priority is given to level-1

inputs; Level-3 inputs get the lowest pripority. The fair value hierarchy ranks fair value measurements based on the type of inputs; it does not depend

on the type of valuation techniques used. A fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the

lowest-level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Level 1: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 

measurement date.

Level 2: Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 

indirectly. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3: Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that market 

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.
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The principal or the most advantageousmarket must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured

using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest
The fair value measurement of a non-financialasset takes into account market participant's ability to generateeconomic benefits by using

the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure 

fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Where required/appropriate, external valuers are involved.

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash

equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets

and liabilities

ii. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either
-in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

-in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non -current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

- Cash or Cash equivalentunless restricted from being exchangedor used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

i. Current and non-current classification

The assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a "current/non-current basis".

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value,

- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Bhatia Communications& Retail (INDIA) Limited is a company domiciled in India and Incorporatedunder the provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956. The company is engaged into retail and wholesale distribution business of mobile handsets, tablets, data-cards, mobile

accessories, mobile related products, Home appliances and other electronic items.The company caters to the domestic markets.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Compliance with Ind AS

BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com
NOTE 1

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards

(hereinafter referred to as the Ind AS) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 and other relevant provisions of the

Act.

b. Historical cost convention
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Traded Goods at Lower of Cost or Net realizable Value.

vi. Cash & Cash Equivalents :

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are term deposit balances, highly liquid investments 

that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to in significant risk of changes in value

vii. Inventories :

Inventories are being valued as under : (As taken ,Valued and certified by the management)

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probablethat future taxable income will be availableagainst which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized 

or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

v. Impairment of Asset

An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment

loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. During the year ,

there is no impairment of assets

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle 

on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognizedusing the BalanceSheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date arising between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting purpose at the reporting date.

iv. Income tax:

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payableon the current period's taxable income based on the applicableincome

tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. The provision for current tax is made at the rate of tax as applicable for the income of the previous year as defined under the

Income tax Act, 1961. Managementperiodicallyevaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax

regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provision where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the 

carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of reporting period during which change has 

occurred.

iii. Revenue Recognition :

Income and expenditure are recognized and accounted on accrual basis as and when they are earned or incurred. Revenue from sales

transaction is recognized as and when the significant risk and reward attached to ownership in the goods is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on completion of sale of goods and is recorded net of trade discount and rebates and GST is 

accounted for on exclusive accounting method which does not get included in Sale

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value 

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

-Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2 (if level 1 feed is not available/appropriate) - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair va

measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

-Level 3 (if level 1 and 2 feed is not available/appropriate) - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable.

Page 95



Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilitiesare classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as

held for trading, or it is a derivativeor it is designatedas such on initial recognition.Financial liabilitiesat FVTPL are measured at fair value

and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses

are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial liability not at FVTPL, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the issue/origination of the financial liability.

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent

solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for

the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is

reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial

assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is

subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which it arises. Interest income from

these financial assets is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') or fair value

through Profit and Loss ('FVTPL') till de-recognitionon the basis of (i) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and

(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collectionof contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are

measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognizedor impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other

income using the effective interest rate method.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognizedwhen the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are

recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through Profit and Loss, transaction costs

that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through Profit and

Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:

Fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through Profit and Loss), or amortized cost.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit a

Loss), and

- those measured at amortized cost.

 The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

viii. Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financialasset of one entity and a financial liabilityor equity instrument of another

entity.
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Contingencies

disclosed for :-

- when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or

- a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to

settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Liabilities; HDFC Bank ltd had given Guarantee of Rs 2.5 Crore to Xiaomi Technology India Private Limited on behalf the

company against Hypothecation of Stock & Book Debts of the Company and Lien Mark of Fixed Deposit of Rs. 62.50 Lacs.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognizedas a separate asset, as appropriate,only when it is probable

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognitionof an intangibleasset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & loss when the asset is derecognized.

xi. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognizedwhen there is a present legal or constructive obligationas a result of a past events, it is probablethat an outflow

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the

obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are

Depreciation method

Depreciationon fixed assets are provided on Straight line Method in accordance with requirements of Schedule II to the Companies Act,

2013. 

x. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated

amortization/depletionand impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable

to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intented use, net changes on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising

from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Gains and losses arising from de-recognitionof PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property, plant and equipment recognized

as at April 1, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Property, plant and

equipment.

ix. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Items of Property, plant and equipment acquired or constructed are initially recognized at historical cost net of recoverable taxes, duties,

trade discounts and rebates, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The historical cost of Property, plant and

equipmentcomprises of its purchase price, borrowing costs and adjustment arising for exchangerate variations attributableto the assets,

including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use.

Capital Work-in-Progress represents Property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as at the reporting date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognizedas a separate asset, as appropriate,only when it is probable

that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the plant and equipment separately, if the component/part has a

cost which is significant to the total cost of the plant and equipment and has useful lives that is materially different from that of the

remaining plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and

maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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xii. Earnings per Share :

Amount in Lacs
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

848.63 527.26 

12,51,52,000         12,51,52,000 

0.678 0.421 

848.63 527.26 

12,51,52,000         12,51,52,000 

- - 

12,51,52,000         12,51,52,000 

0.678 0.421 

Actuarial Assumption

Particulars

Discount Rate (Per annum)

Salary Growth Rate
Retirement Age

Mortality

Withdrawal Rate

65 Years 65 Years

IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

5.00% per annum 5.00% per annum

Gratuity( F.Y.2022-23) Gratuity( F.Y.2021-22)

7.50% per annum 7.25% per annum

5.00% per annum 5.00% per annum

Short term employeebenefits are recognizedas an expense in the statement of Profit & Loss A/c for the year in which the related service

is rendered.

Long term employeebenefit are recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit & Loss A/c for the year in which the employeehas

rendered service

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by 

estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that 

benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the 

obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is 

measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value are based on the 

market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience 

adjustments and changes in acturial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur directly in other comprehensive 

income.

Add: Weighted average no. of potential equity shares

Weighted average no. of shares o/s for diluted EPS

Diluted EPS

xiii. Employee's Benefit :

Provident Fund and ESIC : Provident fund and ESIC contributions are made as per defined scheme and the contribution is charged to 

statement of Profit & Loss A/c of the year when it becomes due. The company has no other obligation other than to contribute and deposit 

to respective authorities

Profit after tax as per accounts

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic EPS

Diluted:

Profit after tax as per accounts

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholdersby the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, etc. For the purpose of calculatingdiluted earnings per

share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity share

  EARNING PER SHARE :
Basic:
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Table Showing Present Value of Obligation

Amount in Lacs

01-04-2022 to:

31-03-2023

01-04-2021 to:

31-03-2022

Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the Period 39.54 35.12 

Interest Cost 2.87 2.55 

Current Service Cost 5.73 5.85 

Past Service Cost - - 

Benefits Paid (if any) - - 

Actuarial (gain)/loss -2.94 -3.98 

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Period 45.20 39.54 

Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Amount in Lacs

As on : 31-03-

2023

As on : 31-03-

2022

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Period 45.20 39.54 

Fair Value of plan assets at the end of period - - 

Net Liability/(asset) recognized in Balance Sheet and related analysis 45.20 39.54 

Funded Status- Surplus/ (Deficit) -45.20 -39.54 

Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss:

Amount in Lacs

01-04-2022 to:

31-03-2023

01-04-2021 to:

31-03-2022

Interest Cost 2.87 2.55 

Current Service Cost 5.73 5.85 

Past Service Cost - - 

Expected Return on plan asset - - 

Expenses to be recognized in P&L 8.60 8.39 

Other comprehensive (income) / expenses (Remeasurement)

Amount in Lacs

01-04-2022 to:

31-03-2023

01-04-2021 to:

31-03-2022

 Cumulative unrecognized actuarial(gain)/loss opening. B/F -18.95 -14.97 

Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation -2.94 -3.98 

Actuarial (gain)/loss - plan assets - - 

Total Actuarial (gain)/loss -2.94 -3.98 

 Cumulative total actuarial(gain)/loss. C/F -21.88 -18.95 

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation: Maturity analysis of benefit obligations.

Amount in Lacs

01 Apr 2023 to 31 Mar 2024
01 Apr 2024 to 31 Mar 2025
01 Apr 2025 to 31 Mar 2026
01 Apr 2026 to 31 Mar 2027
01 Apr 2027 to 31 Mar 2028
01 Apr 2028 Onwards

0.69
0.69
0.69

39.50

Period

Period

Period

Period

2.94
0.69
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Sensitivity Analysis Gratuity Plan

Amount in Lacs

Period As on : 31-03-2023

Liability with x% increase in Discount Rate

Liability with x% decrease in Discount Rate

Liability with x% increase in Salary Growth Rate

Liability with x% decrease in Salary Growth Rate

Liability with x% increase in Withdrawal Rate

Liability with x% decrease in Withdrawal Rate

Amount in Lacs

37,009.96 

5,661.78 

              31,348.18 
Amount in Lacs

As Auditor

Tax Audit

TOTAL:

Sanjeev Harbanslal Bhatia  (Execuitve Directo

Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia  (Executive Director

Kamleshkumari Harbanslal Bhatia ( Non- executive Directo

Rashmi Kapil Arora (Independent Woman Director

Arpit Arunkumar Jain (Independent Director

Rachit Naresh Narang ( Independent Director

Sachin Agrawal (Company Secretary ) * Resigned on 21/12/202

Nikunj Agarwal (Company Secretary) *Appointed on 02/05/202

Ravindra Sojal (Chief Financial Officer

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) &  Director

xviii. Related Party Discourses (As identified by management) :

(i)The disclosures of transactions with the related parties as required by IND AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are given as under.

Related parties have been identified on the basis of representation made by the management of the company and information

available with the company

Name of the related party and description of relationship:

0.35 0.35 

0.15 0.15 
0.50 0.50 

Gross Sales

Less: GST

Net Sales

xvii. Break-Up of auditors renumeration :
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Balances of Loans and Advances, Debtors, Creditor, Banks are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. The company receives

advance/ security deviation from it's various franchisee(s) and the same is adjusted against the amount due from them as on the date of

balance sheet. The Company also receives deposit from branch partner towards security deposit against stock provided to them and

same is shown in balance sheet as other non current liability

xvi. Accounting for Indirect Taxes  (GST)

The Company is recording sales and purchases on exclusivemethod and GST are not passed through the profit and Loss accounts of the

company. The Effect of Indirect Taxes (GST) on Sales will be as unde

xiv. Cash flow statement :

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinaryitems and tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available informati

xv. Loan, Advances & Security Deposit :

40.52; x=1.00% [Change  (10)% ]

50.83; x=1.00% [Change  12% ]

50.92; x=1.00% [Change 13% ]

40.37; x=1.00% [Change  (11)% ]

46.53; x=1.00% [Change  3% ]

43.63; x=1.00% [Change  (3)% ]

Sensitivity Analysis: Significant actuarial assumptions for the determinationof the defined benefit obligationare discount rate and expected

salary increase rate. Effect of change in mortality rate is negligible.Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented below may not be

representativeof the actual change in the defined benefit obligationas it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation

of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. The results of sensitivity analysis are given below:

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 45.19 @ Salary Increase Rate : 5%, and discount rate :7.50%
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Relatives of KMP &  Director

Garima Bhatia Vimlaben Soja

Hema Bhatia Harshita Soja

Naresh Bhatia Krunal Ravindra Soja

Arsh Bhatia (Minor) Roshani Ravindra Soja

Jetr Bhatia (Minor) Ashok Tandan

Parishi Bhatia(Minor) Pramod Tandan

Surabhi Agarwa Kapil Arora

Madhu Agarwa Arunbhai Jain

Omprakash Agarwak Hansa Jain

Vivek Agarwa Naresh Narang

Arunrao Soja Manjuben Narang

Arsh Bhatia Marriage Trust Bhatia Electronics

Parishi Bhatia Marriage Trus Mohit Enterprises

Harbanslal Bhatia HUF E Parisar Tech Pvt Ltd

Naresh Bhatia HUF Telecity Enterprises LLP

Nikhil Bhatia HUF SNV Distributors Pvt Ltd

Sanjeev Bhatia HUF HSL Corporation LLP

Bhatia Mobile Modern Commodeal Pvt Ltd

Bhatia Communication

(ii) Transaction during the year with the related parties and closing balances as on 31.03.202

Amount in Lacs

Relatives of 

KMP &  

Director
- 

- 

- 

- 

3.93 

4.50 

- 

- 

Relatives of 

KMP &  

Director

- 
6.87 

- 

- 

(iii) Loans and Advances in nature of loans granted to directors, promoters, KMPs, and the Related Parties during the ye

Sale - 141.68 

The Company has not granted any loan or advances in nature of loans to directors, promoters, KMPs, and the Related Parties during t

year either jointly or severally whether repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period.

Remuneration & Rent & Salary 8.35 9.02 

Purchase - 58.98 

Nature of Transaction

Closing Balances

Key Managerial Personnel

(KMP) &  Director

Enterprises owned or significantly 

influenced by KMP or their relatives

Unsecured Loan 15.44 - 

Purchase - 1,141.74 

Sale - 1.01 

Salary Expenses 6.52 - 

Rent 27.30 7.20 

Interest Paid -   - 

Director Remuneration 48.00 - 

Loans Accccepted 169.50 - 

Loans Repaid 294.95 - 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives

Nature of Transaction

Value of Transaction 

Key Managerial Personnel

(KMP) &  Director

Enterprises owned or significantly 

influenced by KMP or their relatives
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Amount in Lacs

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

707.64 530.89 732.83 

Average Profit of Last 3 Years 657.12 

2 % of Average Profit 13.14 

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the yea 13.14 

(ii) Amount of Expenses incurred during the Yea 9.59 

(iii) Surplus of the Previous Yea 3.60 

(iv) Surplus of the Current F.Y. 0.04 

(v) Shortfall at the end of the yea Nil

(vi) Total of Previous Year Shortfa Nil

(vii) Reason for Shortfal NA

(viii) Nature of CSR Activities Promoting Sanitation and Health

(ix) Related Party Transaction No Related party transaction

a. Stock Details Qty in Numbers

Inward Outward Closing

4,73,124       4,72,945           29,723 

2,232           4,906 3,00,052 

6,81,764       6,75,586           7,48,431 

20,660         21,181             2,825 

b.

Income in Foreign Currency (Rs.) Nil

Expenses in foreign currency (Rs.) Nil

Foreign currency transactions

Cards & Recharge 

Coupon
3,02,726 

Other Sundry Items 7,42,253 

Electonic Items 3,346 

Profit Before Tax

xxiii.Other Notes :

Additional information required pursuant to The Companies Act 2013

Opening

Mobile & Phones 29,544 

The Company has paid dividend to the public share holders of Rs 15,11,764 after deducting TDS on amount of dividend Rs 16,48,780.

Amount of Rs 63,332 is unpaid as on 31.03.2023, out of which 49,059 was payable from earlier declared dividend.

xxii.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023 is

as per details given below

PARTICULARS
Years

- Provision for inventories

- Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of provisions and contingencies

- Impairment of trade receivables

- Deferred Taxes

xxi.Dividend :

xx. Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date,which may cause material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Company based its assumptions and

estimates on parameters availablewhen the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments,however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such

changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occu
The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:

- Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment and intangibles

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations
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c.

NIL NIL

d.

e.

f.

g. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck of

h. The company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory perio

i. The company have not traded or invest in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial yea

j.

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarie

k.

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarie

l.

m. The company has not been declared as Wilful defaulter by the Banks, Financial institution or other lende

The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherewise) that the company sha
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) o

The company does not have any such tranasaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 

discloused as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 

other relevent provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

 Provision for current tax is made in the accounts on the  basis of estimated tax liability as per the applicable provisions of the Incom

Tax Act 1961.

Figures pertaining to the previous years/period have been regrouped/rearranged, reclassified and restated wherever considered 

necessary, to make them comparable with those of current year/period.

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company 

holding any Benami Property.

The company have not advanced or given loan or invested fund to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary sha
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) o

NIL NIL NIL

Dues to the Micro and Small Enteprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 

information by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditor
The Company is in the process of compilation of details of amounts due to small scale industrial units, and only the party who ha

informed their status as MSME to the company have been consider for above report.

 Disclosure under Sec 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 (MSMED):

The principal amount

and the interest

thereon due to any

supplier as at the year

end

The amount of payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed

day and the interest thereon,

during the year

The amount of interest due and 

payable for the period of delay in

making payment

The amount of

interest accrued

and remaining

unpaid at the end of

the year 

The amount of 

further interest 

remaining due and 

payable in the 

succeeding year
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336

132, DR AMBEDKAR SHOPPING CENTRE RING ROAD SURAT-395002

Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, Email: info@bhatiamobile.com

Financial ratios

Ratios Methodology Variance

As at 

31.03.2023

As at 

31.03.2022

1.) Current Ratio Current assets/Current liabilities 12.19% 2.16 1.93

2.) Debt Equity Ratio Total debt/Shareholders Equity 5.31% 0.35 0.33

3.)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

-14.89% 13.32 15.65

4.)

Return On Equity Ratio

39.42% 0.17 0.12

5.) Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods Sold/Average inventory 11.54% 7.31 6.55

6.) 27.34% 57.74 45.34 

7.) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Net Credit purchases/Average trade payable 29.44% 28.72 22.19 

8.) Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales/ Average Working Capital -0.67% 7.33 7.38

9.) Net Profit Ratio Net profit after tax/ Net Sales × 100 19.87% 2.71% 2.26%

10.) Return On Capital Employed Profit before Interest and Tax/Capital Employed × 100 38.30% 21.29% 15.39%

11.) Return On Investment Profit before Interest and Tax/Capital Employed × 100 38.30% 21.29% 15.39%

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%

1 Return on equity increase on account of increase in profit and turnover in compare to last year.

2 Trade Receivable and Trade Payable turnover ratio increase on account of increase in Sales and Purchase in current year.

3 Return on Capital Employed and Investment increase on account of increase in profit and sales in current year.

Amount in Rs

Notes: As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

a. Average shareholders fund (Opening shareholders fund+Closing shareholders fund)/2 50,38,74,653    43,64,70,385     

b. Cost of goods sold (Opening stock+ Purchases- Closing stock) 3,14,10,30,395 2,29,03,22,298  

c. Average inventory (Opening stock+Closing stock)/2 42,97,50,564    34,95,24,484     

d. Average Trade receivable (Opening trade receivable+Closing trade receivable)/2 5,42,92,898      5,14,91,479       

e. Average Trade payable (Opening trade payable+Closing trade payable)/2 11,07,74,016    10,86,06,483     

f. Working Capital Current Assets-Current Liability(Excluding short term borrowing) 54,54,51,607    39,47,38,793     

g. Average Working Capital (Opening Working Capital+ Closing Working Capital)/2 47,00,95,200    34,09,89,905     

h. Capital Employed Total assets- Current liabilities 63,82,33,882    54,53,98,640     

For RPR & CO For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Raunaq Kankaria

Partner

M No: 138361

FRN: 131964W

Date : 29.05.2023

Place: SURAT

Sanjeev Bhatia 
Managing Director 

DIN: 02063671  

Whole Time Director

DIN:02063706

Earning available for Debt Service/ Interest exp + 

Principal repayment

PAT-Preference Share dividend (if any)/Average 

Shareholders Fund**

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Net Credit Sales / AverageTrade Receivable

Nikhil Bhatia

Sd/- Sd/-Sd/-

Sd/-
Nikunj Omprakash Agarwal
   Company Secretary

Sd/-
Ravindra Arunrao Sojal

C.F.O
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
Regd Off: 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, E mail: info@bhatiamobile.com, Ph: 0261-2349892 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

 

 

* Applicable to holders holding shares in demat/electronic form 

 
I hereby record my attendance at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday, 
September 20, 2023 at Shop No. 203, Ground Floor, Bhatia Complex, Nr. Sosyo Circle Bamroli Road, Surat, 
394210 at 11:00 A.M. 

________________________ 

                                                                                                                                              Shareholders Signature 

Note: 

1. Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. 

2. Members signature should be in accordance with the specimen signature in the Register of Members of 

the Company. 

3. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report and this Attendance Slip at the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of the member(s):   

Registered Address:   
 

Folio No  

No. of 

Shares 

 

*DP ID  

*Client ID  
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED                    
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
Regd Off: 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, E mail: info@bhatiamobile.com, Ph: 0261-2349892 

 
Form MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) if the Companies (Management and 
Administration Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
Name: BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 
Registered Office: 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
 

*Applicable for holders holding shares in demat/ electronic mode 
I/We, being the member(s) of ………………………….. Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

1. Name:……………………………………………Address:…………………………………………

… 

E-mail ID: …………………………………………………………….Signature: 
……………………………………………Or failing him 

 
2. Name:……………………………………………Address:…………………………………………

… 

E-mail ID: …………………………………………………………….Signature: 
…………………………………………… Or failing him 

 
3. Name:……………………………………………Address:………………………………………… 

E-mail ID: …………………………………………………………….Signature: ……………… 
As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and my/our behalf at the 15th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023 at Shop No. 203, Ground Floor, 
Bhatia Complex, Nr. Sosyo Circle Bamroli Road, Surat, 394210 at 11:00 A.M. and at any adjournment thereof 
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Ordinary Resolution For  Against 

1 Adoption of Annual Accounts, Auditor’s & Director’s Report. 
 

  

2 Re-appointment of Mr. Nikhil Harbanslal Bhatia (DIN: 
02063706),Director. Who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 
 

  

 
Signed this_______ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Signature of Shareholder 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

Name of the member(s):   

Registered Address:   
 

E-mail ID:   

Folio No/ *Client ID:   

*DP ID:   

Affix a Re 1 

Revenue Stamp 
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BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED                    
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
Regd Off: 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat-395002 
Website: www.bhatiamobile.com, E mail: info@bhatiamobile.com, Ph: 0261-2349892 

 
Form MGT-12 
Polling Paper 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) if the Companies (Management 
and Administration Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN: L32109GJ2008PLC053336 
Name: BHATIA COMMUNICATIONS & RETAIL (INDIA) LIMITED 
Registered Office: 132, Dr. Ambedkar Shopping Centre, Ring Road, Surat-395002 

 
1. Name of the First Named 

Shareholder (In block letters) 
Postal address  

2. Registered folio No./           : 
DP ID No./Client ID No.* 
(*Applicable to investors holding 
Shares in dematerialized form) 

 
Class of Share 
 

1. I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolution as set out in the Notice of Annual 
General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Wednesday, September 20, 2023 at Shop 
No. 203, Ground Floor, Bhatia Complex, Nr. Sosyo Circle Bamroli Road, Surat, 394210 at 11:00 A.M. 
which is proposed to be placed for consideration of members at the aforesaid AGM of the Company, 
by sending my/our assent (FOR) or dissent (AGAINST) to the said resolution by placing the tick (√ ) 
mark at the appropriate box below: 

 
Item 
No. 

Item Nature of 
Resolution 

No. of 
shares 

I/We 
Assent to 

the 
Resolution 

(FOR) 

I/We dissent 
to the 

Resolution 
(AGAINST) 

(ABSTAIN) 

1 Adoption of Annual 
Accounts, Auditor’s & 
Director’s Report. 

Ordinary     

2 Re-appointment of Mr. 
Nikhil Harbanslal 
Bhatia (DIN: 02063706),  
Director, Who retires 
by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment. 

Ordinary     

 
Place:  Surat                                                                                                       ……………………… 
Date:   20/09/2023                                                                                (Member) 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULAR 
 

EVEN (E VOTING EVENT  NUMBER) 

125228 
 
E-Voting shall remain start on Sunday, 17th day of September, 2023 (9.00 a.m.) and will be open till Tuesday, 
19th day of September, 2023 till the close of working hours (i.e. 5.00 p.m.). 
 
Note: Please read the instructions printed overleaf carefully before exercising your vote. 
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THE MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS HAS TAKEN A “GREEN INITIATIVE IN THE 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE” BY ALLOWING PAPERLESS COMPLIANCES BY THE COMPANIES 
AND HAS ISSUED CIRCULAR STATING THAT SERVICE OF NOTICE/DOCUMENTS INCLUDING 
ANNUAL REPORT CAN BE SENT BY E-MAIL TO ITS MEMBERS. TO SUPPORT THIS GREEN 
INITIATIVE OF THE GOVERNMENT, MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT REGISTERED THEIR E-MAIL 
ADDRESS, SO FAR, ARE REQUESTED TO GET THEIR E-MAIL ADDRESSES, IN RESPECT OF 
ELECTRONIC HOLDING WITH DEPOSITORY THROUGH THEIR CONCERNED DEPOSITORY 
PARTICIPANTS. MEMBERS, WHO HOLD SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM, ARE REQUESTED TO GET 
THEIR SHARES DEMATERIALIZED. 
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